
 

Town of Camden 
Select Board Meeting 

 
October 4, 2016 – 6:30 PM 

Washington Street Conference Room 
Select Board meetings are broadcast live on cable TV Channel 22 and 
 web streamed at www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me 

 
 

A. Call to Order 
 
B. Communications, Presentations, and Recognitions 

 
1. Communication re: low river level – Mark Wallack 

 
2. Proposed change to Daysailer License Agreement - Harbor Committee  

 
3. Middle School Building Committee Presentation – Will Gartley and Marcia Dietrich 

 
4. Installation of energy efficient lighting in the Downtown – Paul Cavalli and Deb Dodge  

 
C. Citizen Comments for items not on the agenda 
 This time is set aside for members of the public to comment on any town-related issue that is not 

on the agenda.  
 
D. Approval of Select Board Minutes dated September 20, 2016 
 
E.   Public Hearings 
 
1. Amendment to the Camden Police Ordinance Chapter VIII, Part XII  “Public Noise and Conduct 

Ordinance”  as follows: 
 

Section 2.5 – Unacceptable Noise Levels 
 
Any sound level exceeding 65 dBA when measured at the property line and persisting for 5 
minutes or more, after 11:00 p.m. and before 7:00 a.m., is prohibited unless a permit has 
been obtained in advance for a specific event.   
 
Section 4 - Designated Area 
The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all areas of the Town of Camden. set forth 
in Exhibit A, attached to this ordinance and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
Explanation:  Camden currently has a noise ordinance that applies to the downtown area.   
This amendment establishes a noise ordinance for the entire town.  It establishes a 
measureable noise standard of 65 decibels, and prohibits noise that exceeds that level from 
11:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

 
2. Adoption of Appendices A-F of the General Assistance Ordinance for 2016- 2017 (Public 

Hearing) 
 
 

http://www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me


 

3.  Liquor Licenses and Special Amusement Permits: 
 

a. Peter Masin Peters d/b/a  Peter Ott’s on the Water at 16 Bay View Landing for a Class1  
Restaurant/Lounge Malt, Spirituous, and Vinous Liquor License 

 
b. Peter Masin Peters d/b/a  Peter Ott’s at 16 Bay View Landing for a Special Amusement 

Permit 
 
c. Stuart Smith d/b/a/16 Bay View Hotel at 16 Bay View Street for a Class I-A Hotel Liquor 

License and Hotel Mini Bars 
 

E. Select Board Member Reports 
 
F. Town Manager Report 

 
G. New Business 
 
1. Review and approval of the November 8, 2016 Special Town Meeting Warrant  

 
2. Order setting November 8, 2016 as a Special Town Meeting 

 
3. Appointment of Bridget Conway to the Camden Opera House Committee 
 
4. Renewal of a Lodging License for Perseid Corporation d/b/a/ Camden Windward House at 6 

High St 
 

5. Renewal of a Victualers License to Perseid Corporation d/b/a/ Camden Windward House at 6 
High St 

 
6. Renewal of a Victualers License to Peter Masin Peters d/b/a  Peter Ott’s on the Water 

 
Adjourn 
 

************ 
 
Convene as Wastewater Commissioners 
 
1.  Consideration of bids to construct and install access platforms on the East and West  
      Megunticook River Dams and repair of the sluice gate at the West Dam 
 
2.  Consideration of bids awards for Sewer Collection System repairs on Bay View St and    
      Mechanic St 
 
3.    2017 Wastewater Budget 
 
4. Approval of Certificate of Commitment of Sewer User Rates April 13, 2016 to July 12, 2016  
 
 





 
 

CAMDEN HARBOR MASTER 
 
 

September 23, 2016 
 
Dear Camden Select Board Members, 
 
At the Harbor Committee meeting held on September 12, 2016, the Committee voted 
unanimously to recommend a change to the Daysailer License Agreement for the 2017 
season. 
 
The proposed change would allow a current Daysailer license holder to pay an extra fee 
(suggested to be $500) to sell tickets from their existing ticket table for another 
commercial passenger vessel operating out of Camden Harbor. 
 
This second vessel must be managed by a licensed Daysailer, but the vessel cannot be 
berthed at the Town Daysailer Float; it would only be advertised at an existing license 
holder's table. Like the existing Daysailer Licenses, this license would be for one year 
and it would be reviewed by the Harbor Master and Harbor Committee and approved by 
the Select Board every year. 

 
The Harbor Committee and I feel that this proposed change will promote the maritime 
industry, create a stronger day sailing fleet and more diverse options for a very 
important part of our tourist industry. 
  
This change would not request adversely impact parking in Camden since the license 
agreement does not allow giving additional parking spaces to the licensee, and it does 
not increase the number of boats that can be docked at the Town Dock.  The License 
requires this additional vessel to be docked at a private dock. 
 
We also expect that the vessel use will not create congestion in our beautiful harbor. 
The vessel itself is quite attractive, has local history, and should add to the beauty of the 
harbor as she sails from it. 
 
This proposed change will enable the town to generate money by enacting a fee for this 
new privilege.  We also expect this change will attract more visitors to Camden harbor  
and will inform visitors of even more sailing options from Camden harbor, all without 
further pressure on the Public Landing facility. 
 
The fee attached for this new Daysailer License option will be decided by the Select 
Board along with the other harbor fees in the fall.  
 
Attached is the proposed change which is shown in red in section 5D (page 2).  I look 
forward to discussing this with you at the October 4 meeting.  Please let me know if you 
need any information before then.  
 
Yours Truly 

Steven Pixley 



  

1 

 

2017 
 DAYSAILER LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made between the TOWN OF CAMDEN, a municipality located in Knox 
County, State of Maine, hereinafter referred to as “Camden,” and, _______________    ______________of 
___________ Maine which operates the vessel __________________, hereinafter referred to as 
“Licensee.” 

 

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties 
agree as follows: 
 

1. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Camden grants to the Licensee a license to use 
the Daysailer Float (hereinafter referred as the “Float”) adjacent to the Public Landing 
in accordance with Section III of Camden’s Harbor and Waterways Ordinance.  Said 
license to use the Float shall be in common with rights granted to other boat owners to 
use that Float.  The aforementioned license to use the Float shall be only for the 
purpose of picking up and dropping off passengers in connection with the daysailer 
business of the Licensee, and only for the use by the vessel set forth above. 

  

2. The term of this Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and end on December 31, 2017. 
 

3. The fee for this Agreement shall be Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500), 
as set by the Camden Select Board in accordance with the Harbor and Waterways 
Ordinance of the Town of Camden. 

 

4. The Licensee shall comply with all Federal, State and Local regulations including, 
without limitation, the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Camden and the Harbor and 
Waterways Ordinance of the Town of Camden. 

 

5. The Licensee further agrees to abide by the following rules and regulations which have 
been established by the Select Board: 

 

A. The Licensee shall adhere to the master schedule of arrival and departure times, 
as established by the Harbormaster, for daysailers licensed by Camden.  A copy 
of said master schedule shall be kept on file at the Town Office with the 
application of the daysailer licensed herein.  The Harbormaster’s master 
schedule from the year immediately prior shall take precedence in establishing 
any subsequent proposed schedule. 

 

B. The Licensee and Town employees shall extend courtesy to members of the 
general public, Town employees, Licensees, and other boat captains and 
personnel at all times. 

 

C. The Licensee’s vessel shall lie alongside the Float for no more than Fifteen (15) 
minutes at any one time without the permission of the Harbormaster.  The 
Licensee shall minimize the vessel’s time at the Float insofar, as possible to 
accommodate other vessels. 

 



  

2 

 

D.  The Licensee shall be permitted to place a ticket table, no larger than Sixteen 

 (16) square feet, on the boardwalk along the Public Landing. Ticket tables shall 

 be set up only during business hours. Ticket table staff shall not bring animals to 

 work, or engage in any other activity that might create a public safety hazard. 

 The location of said ticket table shall be determined by previous locations of 

 existing tables and shall be assigned by the Harbormaster. Any subsequent table 

 locations shall be determined by the Harbormaster.  Subject to all other 

 restrictions and provisions of this agreement, for an additional fee of $500 during 

 the 2017 season, the Licensee may sell tickets for one additional passenger vessel, 

 the M/V (S/V)__________, so long as that vessel is owned or exclusively managed by 

 it and is operated from a private berth.    Any election by Licensee to do shall in no 

 way expand the docking and parking privileges otherwise provided elsewhere 

 herein.  
 

E. The Licensee shall be permitted one (1) sign, no larger than six (6) square feet, 
at the ticket table, subject to the condition that such sign is considered a 
“temporary sign” under the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Camden.  No other 
signage for the Licensee is allowed on the Public Landing. 

 

F. The Licensee shall permit no verbal solicitation for passengers on the Public 
Landing.  Nothing contained in this subparagraph shall prohibit the Licensee, its 
agents and employees, from discussing or promoting day sailing activities with 
prospective patrons.  The only permitted item for sale shall be tickets. 

 

G. The Licensee shall prohibit any employee, supplier, contractor, or agent of the 
licensee, or any crew member of the daysailer vessel, from parking in the 
parking spaces at the Public Landing, with the exception of one parking space 
for one vehicle owned or used by the Licensee, or an employee of the Licensee.  
It is the intent of Camden to allow the Licensee to use one parking space at the 
Public Landing for a vehicle to be parked in that parking space during 
emergencies, for the storage of brochures and other supplies, to provide shelter 
for employees during inclement weather, and for no other purpose whatsoever.  
In accordance with Chapter VIII, Schedule 12 of the Parking Ordinance of the 
Town of Camden, this one parking space is available to the Licensee only during 
the time that the Licensee operates a vessel from the Town float in accordance 
with the Harbor and Waterways Ordinance and for the commercial purposes 
allowed by this license.  

 

After the execution of this license, the Police Chief, upon receipt of a written request 
endorsed by the Harbormaster shall issue one permit to the Licensee for permission to 
park in one parking space at the Public Landing.  No vehicle owned, operated, or 
controlled by the Licensee or any employee of the Licensee shall be parked in a parking 
space on the Public Landing unless that permit is displayed on the dashboard of that 
vehicle. 

 

Any violation of the provisions set forth in this subparagraph shall be a cause for 
termination of this License Agreement in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
Paragraph 14 of this Agreement. 



  

3 

 

 

6. The Licensee shall indemnify and hold harmless Camden and the agents and 
employees of Camden against all liability, including costs and attorney’s fees, resulting 
from any injury, death or damage occurring on or near the licensed premises or arising 
out of the Licensee’s operations pursuant to this License, and arising out of negligence 
or omissions of the Licensee, its agents, patrons and employees. 

 

7. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, the Licensee shall cease operations 
from the Float. 

 

8. The Licensee shall carry adequate worker’s compensation insurance or some other 
insurance providing equivalent protection for claims arising out of injuries to 
employees of the Licensee, and shall further obtain public liability insurance for the 
Licensee in an amount not less than Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000) for personal 
injury involving one person, Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000) for personal injury 
involving more than one person in a single occurrence , and Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($50,000) for property damage.  The Licensee shall maintain such policies in effect 
throughout the duration of any use by the Licensee of the Float pursuant to this 
License.   

 

The Licensee shall, no later than JUNE 15, 2017, furnish Camden with certificates of 
insurance as evidence that those insurance policies are in effect.  Those insurance 
policies shall state that each policy shall not be canceled except upon no less than ten 
(10) days written notice to Camden of such cancellation. 

 

9. The Licensee shall, no later than JUNE 15, 2017, provide proof of payment of excise tax 
for the licensed vessel. Such excised tax payments shall be made in accordance with 
Title 36 M.R.S.A. 1504. 

 

10. Every right or remedy given to Camden by this Agreement is cumulative and no right 
or remedy shall be exclusive of any other right or remedy provided by law.  The 
exercise of one right or remedy by Camden shall not impair the right of Camden to 
exercise any other right or remedy. 

 

11. The Licensee shall not, at any time or in any manner, either directly or indirectly assign 
or encumber this Agreement or any of its interest herein or license the use of any part 
of the licensed premises, without first obtaining the written consent of Camden. 

 

12. The Licensee agrees that this Agreement is not a lease and that no interest or estate in 
real property or the improvements located on the Public Landing is created by this 
Agreement. 

 

13. This Agreement supersedes any existing Agreement between the parties with 
reference to the Float.  This License shall expire on December 31, 2017.  Any further 
License of the Float for any subsequent year shall be determined in accordance with 
the Harbor and Waterways Ordinance of the Town of Camden, and shall be subject of 
separate negotiations following the expiration of this License. Camden specifically 
reserves the right: 

 

 

  



  

4 

 

 

- to elect to award no Licenses for use of the Float for any year subsequent to 
December 31, 2017; 

- to elect to award no License to the Licensee herein for any year subsequent to 
December 31, 2017; and 

- to elect to award a License to the Licensee herein, for a year subsequent to 
December 31, 2017, under terms and conditions which differ from the terms 
and conditions set forth in this License. 

 

14. Failure of the Licensee to abide by the terms and provisions of this Daysailer Licensing 
Agreement within seventy-two (72) hours after receiving written notice of such 
violation from the Harbormaster, and an opportunity to cure the violation within that 
72-hour time period, shall result in termination of this Agreement by Camden. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals this _______ day of 
_____________ 20__ 

 

 

       TOWN OF CAMDEN 

 

         By:       

Witness      John French, Chair 

       Camden Select Board 

 

       LICENSEE: 
 

         By:       

Witness      xxxxx 

    

         
Its________________________________ 

       (Title) 

 

________________________________________________    By:___________________________________________ 

Witness      xxxxx 

                 
   Its________________________________ 

       (Title) 



  Camden-Rockport Middle School 
 
In February 2015, the voters of Camden and Rockport turned down a bond issue that 
would have funded a new middle school on the site of the present school in Camden. 
However, the issues with the current school building remain unresolved. The fact is that 
the current middle school building and its systems are failing and while immediate 
concerns are being addressed, a longer term solution is required. 

 
Following the vote, outreach to the community indicated that the building issues and 
proposed building were not well communicated and explained. Neither the need for a 
solution to the current building’s condition was made clear, nor was the fact that the 
school board had considered a range of options before recommending the new building. 

 
To move forward, a committee of residents and interested parties was formed to explore 
options for resolution to the middle school facility. The charge for this committee is to 
reconsider all possible options and to present them clearly and cogently to the 
community.  Having explored the options with the community, the committee is further 
charged with making a decision as to the best option to recommend to the school board. 
This chosen option would then be put before the voters with sufficient communication 
and justification in November of 2017. Key to that communication is the factor that there 
is no option to do nothing. “Doing nothing” will require significant capital repairs in the 
coming years. Also important in this communication process is that costs are involved in 
any option chosen; those costs will be controlled based on the amount of bond funding. 
There would not be a situation of cost overruns once the budget and bond funding are 
established. 

 
The committee has developed three potential options: 

 
 

Option #1: This option would result in a brand new facility on the Knowlton Street 
campus. A new facility would be a long term investment in education by creating 
a space that is energy efficient, appropriately sized (approx.30% smaller), and 
designed to meet current and future educational programming. 

 
 
 

Option #2: This option entails a fairly major renovation of the facility to not only 
address structural and systems issues, but it would also address energy and 
operational issues and some educational challenges. Some of the current 
facility would be torn down, but MET would remain. 

 

 
 
 

Option #3: The option to patch is the option to “do nothing”. The building is old 
and failing and does not meet basic life safety codes in many areas. This option 
would address structural issues, life safety, ADA compliance, and deferred 
maintenance to maintain a building. All existing buildings would remain. 

 
 

Page 1   
  9/21/16



We, the Building Vision Committee with the assistance of Oak Point Associates, have 
put together the following documents to outline the three possible options for resolution 
of the current middle school building issues. Also included are budget backup 
documentation, costs for comparable buildings in other towns and a list of conditions in 
the current building requiring remediation. We hope you will give consideration to this 
information and aid us in making a recommendation to the school board. Together we 
have the opportunity to create the right environment for our youth. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 
9/21/16 

 
 
 
 

  



Page 3
9/21/16

Project Cost

Total 20 year life cycle cost

$26,369,512
$8,741,518

$16,050,000
$51,161,030

Outdated

$20,522,930
$6,802,371

$19,500,000
$46,825,301

$64.08 + $38.77

$26,369,512

$55.14 + $33.36

--

75%

$20,522,930

$55.14 + $13.74
$64.08 + $15.96

Annual tax impact per $100,000 valuation

Three options for
Bu

ild
in

g 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
Pr

oj
ec

t C
os

t I
nf

or
m

ta
tio

n

CREATES AN APPROPRIATELY SIZED AND EFFICIENT BUILDING --

IMPROVES STUDENT CIRCULATION AND SUPERVISED CORRIDORS --

CREATES A SINGLE SECURE ENTRANCE --

ADA ACCESSIBILITY COMPLIANCE

St
ud

en
t S

af
et

y

CORRECTS STRUCTURAL ISSUES AND DEFFERED MAINTENANCE 
ISSUES 90%

Bond interest (2.51% assumed)

CREATES APPROPRIATELY SIZED EDUCATIONAL SPACES --

PROVIDES IMPROVED BUILDING ENVELOPE

--

LOCATES EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS IN EFFICIENT MANNER --

PROVIDES FLEXIBLE 21st CENTURY LEARNING SPACES --

Total 20 year life cycle cost

Total Operation and Maintenance (over 20 years)

$16,429,916
$5,446,533

$22,214,320
$44,090,769

Camden Rockport
Middle School

Rockport $64.08

Ac
ad

em
ic

 E
xc

el
le

nc
e

IMPROVES VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN SAFETY ON THE SITE --

Condition of facility at the end of 20 years
MINIMUM

New School Needed
Cost differential above minimum over 20 years $7,070,261

Still Going Strong
$2,734,532

Camden $55.14

Project Cost $16,429,916

--

--

50%

--

--

50%



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A new Camden Rockport Middle School would be a brand new 83,400 square foot building.  The 
proposed facility would be built on the existing CRMS site.  Additional information can be found in 
the Facilities Assessment Report prepared by Oak Point Associates on June 18, 2014 

 Site improvements include the construction of a new parent drop off, separate bus loop and new 
parking lot.  Existing athletic fields would be used for contractor laydown and staging.  These fields 
would be reconstructed through the project with improved drainage, new play surfaces and proper 
orientation. 

The new building will follow the Maine Department of Education's space allocation requirements.  A 
number of programs however will require additional square footage based on the robust attendance 
in the school.  These programs include Band and Chorus.  In addition, community supported programs 
such as Family Consumer Sciences would be included.  

The existing school would remain in operation throughout the construction process.  This would be 
the least disruptive option to the educational programs on the campus. 

 The future of the Mary E. Taylor building will be evaluated through the process and a final decision 
will be made by the School Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 
9/21/16 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A renovated Camden Rockport Middle School would be a 113,000 square foot building.  Roughly 
10,000 square feet of the existing building would be demolished, but MET would remain.  
Additional information can be found in the Facilities Assessment Report prepared by Oak Point 
Associates on June 18, 2014 

 

The work proposed for a renovation project would reduce the total building area of the school, 
address ADA and life safety code-related deficiencies, provide improvements to the building 
envelope, mechanical and electrical system upgrades, and upgrades to the interior finishes.  Interior 
renovations would relocate programs to provide opportunities for collaboration.   

Few changes to the site would be possible.  Existing traffic and pedestrian conflicts would remain.  
Potential parking improvements could be made following the demolition of the existing 7th grade 
wing.  No improvements to the athletic fields are included in the current estimate. 

 Work in this option would require multiple phases over the course of three consecutive summers and 
two school years.  During this time, individual classes would require relocation to allow for 
construction to take place.  It is anticipated that this option would be the most disruptive to the 
educational programs within the building. 

 Items included in the "Patch" option would be addressed through this work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5 
 9/21/16 

 



 9/21/16 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Camden Rockport Middle School is an approximately a 121,850 square foot, three-story 
structure which serves grades five through eight for the entire district.  The MET portion of the 
building was constructed in 1925.  Major Additions were constructed in 1955, 1965, 1980 and 2000.   

The patch option would retain the current facility in its entirety. List of projects included in the 
Patch option are excerpts from the Facilities Assessment Report prepared by Oak Point Associates 
on June 18, 2014. 

 Civil 
Water line improvements on Spring Street 
Water line improvements on Route 105 and Knowlton Street 
Excavate and install foundation drains 

 
Structural 

MET Lateral Force Resisting System 
Horizontal Diaphragm 
Vertical CMU Shear Walls 
Repair and seal foundation cracks 
Repair through wall cracks 

  
Gymnasium Lateral Force Resisting System 

Horizontal Diaphragm 
Vertical Diaphragm 
Reinforce existing 10x10 split timber floor beam with steel 

  
1955 Addition Lateral Force Resisting System 

Horizontal Diaphragm 
Vertical Diaphragm 
Reinforce existing 2x12 roof joists 
Reinforce existing 2x8 roof joists 

  
1965 Addition Lateral Force Resisting System 

Horizontal Diaphragm 
Vertical Diaphragm 

Page 6 



 9/21/16 

Reinforce bent vertical members in the 28LA06 Joists (two locations) 
Reinforce 16J6 steel roof joists 
Repair and seal foundation cracks 
  

1980 Addition Lateral Force Resisting System 
Horizontal Diaphragm 
Vertical Diaphragm 
Repair and seal foundation cracks in Northwest corner 
  

 Architectural 
MET School 

Replace protective window screens on playground side 
Clean and paint exposed steel lintels 
Replace exposed steel fire escape stairs with enclosed egress stair tower 
Replace east and west exterior entrance stairs 
Repair foundation coating 
Replace exterior entrance door systems 
Replace flight of stairs from basement to first floor  
Restore decorative wood trim and moldings at main entrance doors 
Selective (gutting) demolition at basement level 

 Gymnasium with 2000 Additions 
Replace shingle roof 
Replace wood fascia and soffits with aluminum fascia and soffits 
Replace main exterior entrance door system 
Provide upper level egress door 
Replace VCT flooring 
Replace wood gymnasium floor with wood sports flooring system 
Renovate toilet room finishes and to meet ADA requirements 

 1955 Addition 
Demolition of this portion of the building is assumed for the purpose of this report.  See General  

         items for cost of demolition. 

 
1965 Additions 

Clean and repaint foundation and window sill coating 
Replace exposed steel fire escape stairs with enclosed egress stair tower 
Replace main entrance wood fascia, siding and soffit materials with aluminum  
Replace FRP wall panels with aluminum composite wall panels 
Replace flat roof edge metal fascia 
Replace protective window screens 
Replace exterior overhead door                                                                                                          Page 7 



 9/21/16 

 
Replace exterior doors 
Provide acoustical wall treatments in chorus room 

 1980 Addition 
Replace wood fascia and soffit materials with aluminum 
Replace gutters and downspouts at entry canopies 
Replace wood gable vents with aluminum vents 
Replace three exterior doors 
Replace VAT floor tile with VCT flooring 
Replace existing and provide new acoustical wall treatments 
Replace mini-theater fixed seating  

 General 
Replace elevator 
Point and clean masonry 
Replace window caulking 
Insulate exterior walls 
Hazardous material removals allowance 
Replace ceilings with SAT ceiling system 
Replace interior doors, frames and hardware 

 
 ADA 

Provide ADA access to mini-theater stage 
Renovate toilet room finishes and to meet ADA requirements 
ADA compliant signage allowance 

 
*Improvements to interior doors have been included in the Architectural section 

 Subtotal ADA 

 Life Safety 
Interior walls at stair enclosures 
Penetration firestopping 
Rated Ceiling at Basement Storage Under Gym 
Replace Chorus Room Stair & Railings & Rubber 
Replace Handrails @ Original Building & Adjacent Stair 
Replace Guardrails at Ramp by Rm 289 
Replace Rubber Stair Tread and Riser thru-out 
Door, HM Frame and Hardware 
Rated HM Door, HM Frame and Hardware 
Insulated Rated Metal Doors and Frame (Pair)                                                                                     Page 8 



 9/21/16 

Fixing existing interior transoms in place 
Replace wire glass w/ Rated Vision Kits at Doors 

 
 Mechanical 

Replace Air Handling Units 
Energy Recovery Ventilator-1 
Energy Recovery Ventilator-2 
Energy Recovery Ventilator-3 
Energy Recovery Ventilator-4 
Energy Recovery Ventilator-5 
Energy Recovery Ventilator-6 
Roof Top Unit 

 Diffusers/ Registers 
Diffusers 
Registers 

 Ductwork 
Duct (including fittings/joints/supports) 
Insulation (board) 

 Controls 

 Test and Balancing: 
Test and balance diffusers 
Test and balance ERV 

 Duct Heating Coils 

 Finned Tube Radiation 

 Heating Distribution 
Piping 
Pumps 

  NFPA 96 Commercial Range Hood (5 Units In FCS) 

 
 Plumbing 

Replace existing fixtures (not previously renovated) 
Water Closet 
Urinal                                                                                                                                                            Page 9 



 9/21/16 

Service Sink 
Laboratory Sink 
Lavatory 
Shower 
Water Cooler 

 Distribution Piping & Insulation 
Sanitary piping & Specialties 

 
 Fire Protection 

New sprinkler entrance, mains and fire department connection 
Install sprinklers in unprotected areas 

 Fire Protection Subtotal 

 Electrical 
Service, distribution, devices, equipment connections and materials 
Interior lighting upgrade 
Upgrade fire alarm system including voice evacuation 
Replace and upgrade building telecommunications infrastructure 
Access control and CCTV security system 
Lightning protection system 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10 



School   Building Size 
Number 

of 
Students 

Year Budget   
Escalated to 

2017 
Referendum 

Cost/ 
Student 

Cost/SF 
(Total 

Project) 

Corinth Elementary School (PreK-5) 99898 sf-New Construction 581 2013 $28,068,678  $31,156,233 $53,625 $312 

                    

Fryeburg Elementary School (PreK-8) 99900 sf-45,300 sf 
Renovation 577 2014 $22,896,645  $25,415,276 $44,047 $254 

                    

Jefferson Village School (PreK-8) 55630 sf-New Construction 287 2010 $19,157,708  $21,265,056 $74,094 $382 

                    

Chelsea Elementary School (PreK-8) 60045 sf-New Construction 315 2010 $18,850,266 
 

$20,923,795 $66,425 $348 

                    

Camden-Rockport Middle School (5-8) 83400 sf-Proposed 400 2017 
  

$26,369,512 $65,924 $316 

                    

          
          
          
          

         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11 
9/21/16 

 



DOWNTOWN STREET LIGHT PROJECT  
 
 
 

The following is a summary of the Downtown Network Board Design Team’s recommendation and 
proposal. 
 
We have been working as a group on this project for several months now. The lighting test was 
installed in May, 2016. The test area originally covered the 5 lights on Main Street in front of the 
library and the residences; a sixth light was added recently where one was replaced due to an 
auto accident. That one was replaced with insurance coverage. Two of the five lights were paid for 
by the supplier as support for the test in Camden.  
 
Feedback has been overwhelmingly positive in so many aspects—light quality, reduction of light 
pollution, improving night sky, improved light distribution, reduced glare, and overall design and 
look of the fixtures as appropriate, anticipated cost savings in labor and power use, etc. 
 
Two of our members have researched the best and most efficient lighting approaches for our 
downtown area and one of our members has done a thorough job of calculating realistic and 
impressive cost savings for our town based upon these replacements. Earlier, members of our 
team made a presentation to the Select Board on the test itself. At that time, we shared detailed 
calculations and information about the lighting quality and technology.  
 
Our team has worked very closely with the town officials—Pat Finningan, Karen Brace and Rick 
Seibel. Rick has been a tremendous help and supporter throughout this process.  
 
Camden has 52 light poles/fixtures in the downtown area. There are 6 that have already been 
replaced in the first phase. They are located as follows: 
 
Main Street               12   
Elm Street                 13 
Mechanic Street         3 
Atlantic Avenue          8 
BayView Street          10 
 
Total remaining to be replaced:  46 
 
We have discussed the option of replacement in two stages—the first one would be to complete 
Main and Elm Streets and the next phase would include Mechanic, BayView and  Atlantic. The 
preferred approach would be to replace all lights at one time which would maximize the savings 
on labor during the installation and the electricity and current bulb and ballast replacement. 



 
Replacement cost for each phase would be: 
 
Phase One      25 Fixtures     $37,087.50 
Phase Two      21 Fixtures     $31,153.50 
 
SAVINGS INFORMATION 
 
We estimate that by replacing the 46 downtown Metal Halide (MH) street lights, Camden will save 
over $67,000. over the life of the new LED lights. 
 
The calculations are based on: 
 
1. The 18 year life expectancy of the new LED lights vs. 1.75 years for the current MH lights and 
the 5 years for their required accompanying ballasts. 
 
2. The electrical usage in Watts per LED (42W) vs. 211W for the MH bulbs and ballasts. The 
annual savings in electricity is estimated to be $4,932. 
 
3. While the one time replacement cost is higher for the new LED fixtures (1,386 each with 
negotiated 10% volume discount) vs. 56. for MH bulbs and ballasts—there is a substantial 
reduction in labor costs as the LED’s are installed every 18 years vs. the current changes every 
1.75 years.  
 
The labor for the one-time LED installation for all fixtures is $4,485. vs. $30,754. for MH bulb and 
ballast replacement based on needing to change current type lights every 18 months. 
 

      MH & Ballast LED   Savings 
   
  Electricity Cost  $113,697.98  $24,915.59  $88,782.39 
   
  Replacement total  $ 43,219.34  $64,545.00  -$21,325.66 
 
  TOTAL NET Savings $67,456.73   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
 
A very worthwhile additional option can be added to the fixtures that would allow them to 
communicate via laptop, tablet or mobile phone with a gateway control center. This would allow us 
to dim and/or turn-off individual street’s lights or all at certain times to benefit even more electricity 
savings. This option is being priced out now. We are having a discussion with the supplier in trying 
to add this option without a significant up charge. The gateway control center itself is priced at 
around $3,000. This figure is not in the above calculations as it is an option at this point.  
 
Finally, once the fixtures are ordered and paperwork is complete—delivery of the new fixtures 
could be expected in 8 weeks. And, installation could begin immediately.  
 
 
 
 



Free Press Letter to the Editor (Sept. 29, 2016) 

Streetlight Field Trip— 

 

“Blinded by the Light” was the song going through my head during a field trip to look at 

Rockland’s new street lights Saturday night. The glare was so intense I couldn’t see the actual 

fixtures, just burning white light that looked like revved-up arc lamps or mini blast furnaces. It was 

very hard to see pedestrians on the sidewalk about to step into the street. The street light at the 

crosswalk was blazing, yet the pedestrians standing underneath it were hidden in a pool of shadow. 

 

The glare during a stroll along the sidewalk had me in a permanent squint, wishing for sunglasses 

and a hat with a visor on it. Not only were second-story windows lit up, so were third-story 

windows and the peaks of the roofs above Candy Harbor and the Flower Goddess. Above Side 

Country Sports there was so much light shining into their second floor stockroom window, I could 

see the labels of boxes sitting on the shelves. 

 

Ground floor restaurants were hit by the light, as were the patrons sitting at tables by the windows. 

The foreheads of diners at Sammy’s Deluxe gleamed. Patrons at FOG were enjoying the 

restaurant’s beautiful low light ambience. The new street light outside FOG was turned off. Another 

light was turned off across the street from the high-end apartments above the Rheal Day Spa. 

Residents must not have appreciated having their interiors lit up all night. 

 

As I drove north out of Rockland the street light glare increased. A row of double fixtures ended 

with the grand finale of a triple fixture outside the Rankin Center. The apartment windows not hit 

by the lights had a nice homey glow coming from inside. The windows facing the street lights had 

their shades and blinds pulled down tight to the sills. No cooling breeze for them on summer nights 

or twinkling views of the harbor. 

 

Arriving in Camden I was blinded again by the glare of the old, glass acorn fixtures installed on 

Main Street 18 years ago. The scene changed dramatically when I arrived at the five new LED 

street lights installed near the Camden Library to test their appeal and solicit feedback. The 

Washington Postlite Full Cutoff fixtures are beautiful, gaslight-era reproductions that recess LEDs 

into the metal cap. There was no glare, even when I looked directly at them. There was no light 

shining up into second- and third-story windows. All the light was focused down. The sky was dark. 

Standing on the library lawn I looked up and saw the stars. The word that came to mind was 

“magical.” It was as if I was standing in an art gallery looking at a streetscape perfectly lit by 

invisible spots. 

 

Driving back into Rockland I was hit by the blinding glare of that triple fixture from three blocks 

away. Why is Rockland removing the old GranVille halide fixtures CMP installed on Main Street 

15 years ago and installing more light-spewing GranVille fixtures, jerry-rigged for LEDs? Why did 

Rockland buy the same type of obsolete, glass acorns that Camden and other cities are removing 

and replacing with efficient, focused lighting?  

 

The irony here is that both fixtures, GranVille and Washington, are manufactured by the same 

company, Holophane. And that research by lighting engineers about LED street lights and fixture 

performance is available for free on the internet. Why, then, did Rockland buy faulty fixtures that 

impair vision, irritate diners, flood apartments, and waste energy and money spilling unfocused 

light everywhere? 

 

Springer Lowell, Rockland 

 



 

Letters to the Editor (Village Soup) Sept. 29, 2016 

New streetlights are a 'blunder' 

Why is Rockland installing glass acorn luminaries that create a disabling glare for drivers, do not 

have full cutoff, direct light into second-floor apartments and light up the sky? 

Why is Rockland using the same type of poorly performing glass fixtures that our neighbor Camden 

is now removing and replacing with historic full cutoff Washington Postlite LED fixtures that emit 

no light above 90 degrees, no glare, no light trespass into second-floor windows and no costly sky 

glow? 

The purpose of streetlights is to illuminate the street, not second-floor windows nor the sky. 

Streetlights should increase safety, not create hazards by disabling drivers with blinding glare. 

Wasted light is wasted energy that taxpayers will be paying for on our municipal electric bill for 

years to come. The purpose of these new lights was for cost savings! Why illuminate the sky? 

How did Camden get their streetlights so right and Rockland make such a blunder? 

There have been complaints already about the lights' illumination in second-floor windows and two 

are currently turned off. If you drive down Spear Drive to the wastewater treatment facility, you 

will see the ones that were installed in 2011. They are dimmed way low now, likely because of the 

bird exhibit inside the WWTF. The planning for new Main Street lights has been going on for about 

10 years! The acorn-style lamp that is installed averages a 20 percent to 40 percent loss. So this 

investment to save the city money surely could have been improved upon. 

I would encourage everyone to drive down Rockland's Main Street, then continue on to Camden to 

view their new streetlights, which are superb. They are located in the area near the library. You will 

notice the dome top. The bulbs are in the top, so they direct the light to the street and sidewalk. 

There is no globe to create all the glare. Please try to tear up or pull out your hair. 

Sandra Schramm 

Rockland 

 



 

TOWN OF CAMDEN 
POLICE ORDINANCE 

CHAPTER VIII 
 

Revised through June 12, 2002 Annual Town Meeting added Part XV Public Transportation 
Ordinance 
Revised July 21, 2003 Select Board Meeting, Parking Ord. Schedule 9 

Revised August 19, 2003 Select Board Meeting, Parking Ord. Schedule 3 & Schedule 8 
Revised November 17, 2003, Parking Ord, Section 5 speed regulations 
Revised June 7, 2004 Select Board Meeting, Parking Ord. Schedules 4 & 5 
Revised June 21, 2004 Select Board meeting, Parking Ord. Schedule 7 
Revised June 14, 2005 Annual Town Meeting, added Part XI Authorizing Names for Private Roads 
Revised October 3, 2005 Select Board Meeting, Parking Ord. Section 13.1 paragraph 2c (deleted) 
Revised June 13, 2006 Annual Town Meeting, revision to Part VI Taxicab Ordinance 
Revised June 14, 2007 Annual Town Meeting; replaced Part XIII Placement of Benches on Public 
Sidewalks Ordinance with new Sidewalk Ordinance 
Revised June 18, 2007 Select Board Meeting, Part IV Traffic Code, Section 15, Schedule 10 
Revised November 6, 2007 Special Town Meeting (Part III-B Discharge of Firearms) 
Revised November 4, 2008 Special Town Meeting Vote (Part I-D Victualer License Ordinance; Part 
I-E Lodging Establishment Licensing Ordinance; Part II-A Special Amusement Permits; and Part VI 
Taxicab Regulations. 
Revised November 12, 2008 Select Board Meeting, Part IV Traffic Code, Section 15, Schedule 10 
Revised February 3, 2009 Select Board Meeting, Schedule A Taxicab Ordinance 
Amended Section 15-A Penalties, Select Board Meeting, April 5, 2011. 
Revised June 15, 2016 Annual Town Meeting added Part III-D Prohibition of Feeding Wild Animals 
Revised June 15, 2016 Annual Town Meeting repealed Part XI Authorizing Names for Private Roads  
replaced with Part XI NG-911 Addressing Ordinance 
Revised through November 8, 2016 to amend Part XIII Public Conduct and Noise 
 
 
Certified: 
 
 
                  
John R. French, Jr., Select Board Chair         Date 
 
 
 
A true copy, attest: 
 
 
________________________________             
Katrina Oakes, Town Clerk    Date 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

CHAPTER VIII 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 
Police Ordinance 

 
 

PART XII 
 

PUBLIC NOISE AND CONDUCT ORDINANCE 
 
Section 1 - Preamble 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Title 30-A, Section 3001 of the Maine Revised Statutes, and by 
the authority granted therein under Section 3001, for the purpose of promoting the general welfare 
and providing for public safety and convenience, the Inhabitants of the Town of Camden adopt this 
Noise Ordinance. 
 
The Town of Camden has determined by virtue of complaints to the Police Department and the 
Board of Selectmen from citizens, downtown merchants, and visitors to the Town, that certain 
conduct within portions of the Town designated in this ordinance, is preventing persons residing 
within those areas from fully enjoying their property and having a reasonable degree of quiet, 
particularly during nighttime hours, and is also preventing members of the public from enjoying 
public parks and other public spaces. 
 
The Town further finds that reasonable regulations concerning noise are necessary in order to 
preserve a downtown area which is attractive to customers, visitors and residents and maintains a 
non-threatening environment within the downtown area, including public parks and public spaces. 
 
The Town further finds that existing state laws and regulations do not fully and adequately address 
the difficulties experienced within the Town of Camden which are sought to be addressed by this 
ordinance, and that enforcement of such laws and regulations, when brought by officials not 
associated with the Town of Camden, is not sufficiently vigorous or timely in order to resolve the 
difficulties experienced in the Town. 
 
Accordingly, exercising the home-rule powers conferred upon the Town, the Town does hereby 
adopt the following ordinance, which shall be referred to as the "Public Noise and Conduct 
Ordinance". 
 
Section 2 - Prohibited Conduct and Acts 
 
The following acts undertaken within the designated area of the Town of Camden as set forth in 
Section 4.0 (Exhibit A), are hereby declared to be a violation of this ordinance: 
 

2.1 - Unreasonable, Loud and Raucous Noise 
 

Yelling, shouting, hooting, whistling, singing, or the production of any other noise, in a loud 
and raucous manner, between the hours of 11:00 PM and 7:00 AM on the following morning 
within the area set forth in Section 4.0 (Exhibit A), so as to unreasonably annoy or disturb 
the quiet, comfort, or repose of any persons located more than fifty feet (50') from the 
source of that noise shall be prohibited. 

 



 

2.2 - Obstructions of a Public Way 
 

Knowingly and intentionally causing an unreasonable obstruction of a public way, road, 
street, sidewalk or walkway in a public park shall be prohibited within the designated area 
of the Town of Camden as set forth in Section 4.0 (Exhibit A). 
2.3 - Unreasonably Loud Sound Production 

 
The playing, using or operating of any radio, receiving set, musical instrument, or other 
machine or device for the production or reproduction of sound in such a manner as to 
unreasonably annoy or disturb the peace, quiet, comfort or repose of any other person 
located more than fifty fe2et (50') from the source of that sound shall be prohibited 
between the hours of 11:00 PM and 7:00 AM the following morning within the area set forth 
in Section 4.0 (Exhibit A). 

 
2.4 - Unreasonable Sounds from Horns or Signaling Devices 
The sounding of any horn or signaling device for an unnecessary or unreasonable length of 
time or for a purpose not associated with the proper and legitimate signaling activity 
undertaken in conjunction with the operation of a motor vehicle shall be prohibited within 
the areas set forth in Section 4.0 (Exhibit A). 
 
2.5   Unacceptable Noise Levels 
Any sound level exceeding 65dBA when measured at the property line and persisting for5 
minutes or more after 11:00 p.m.and before 7:00 a.m., is prohibited unless a permit has 
been obtained for a specific event. 

 
Section 3 - Enforcement Procedure 
 

3.1 Any violations of this ordinance shall be a civil violation, which shall be prosecuted 
through the issuance of a civil  summons by the Camden Police Department in the same 
form and in the same manner of prosecution as would be the case with a parking violation. 
The regulations governing prosecution of parking violations are set forth in the Camden 
Code, Chapter VIII, Section 15-A, sub-section 1. Actions shall be prosecuted by the Camden 
Police Officers or by the Town Attorney in the District Court for Knox County, located in 
Rockland, Maine. 

 
3.2 For any first violation of this ordinance, there shall be a civil fine or penalty imposed 
in an amount not less that Fifty Dollars ($50.00) and not more than One Hundred Dollars 
($100.00). Each subsequent violation of this ordinance within a period of two (2) years 
from the date of the first violation, shall result in the imposition of a minimum civil fine or 
penalty of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) and a maximum fine or penalty of Two Hundred 
Fifty Dollars($250.00). 

 
3.3 In addition to civil penalties for any violation of this ordinance, the Court shall 
require the violator to pay the Town reasonable attorney's fees incurred in connection with 
the prosecution of the violation, together with costs and filing fees incurred by the Town in 
connection with that prosecution. 

 
Section 4 - Designated Area 
 
The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all areas of the Town of Camden.  



 

 
Section 5 - Reparability 
In the event that any provision of this ordinance  shall be held illegal, it is intent that all remaining 
provisions of this ordinance, which are not declared illegal, shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Designated Area 

 
The designated area of this ordinance shall be: 
1. All streets and ways or portions of streets and ways: 
 
 
2. All public sidewalks, public ways, public walkways, public parks, and real property owned by the 
Town of Camden or other public entity which abut such streets or ways. "Public parks" shall 
include, without limitation, Harbor Park and the dam site, the Camden Public Library grounds and 
Amphitheater, the Village Green, and the Public Landing. 
 
Historical Notes: Adopted June 13, 1995 at Town Meeting 
      Amended November 8, 2016 at Special Town Meeting 
 
 
 



GENERAL ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE 
APPENDICES A-D 

2016-2017 
 
 
 
The Municipality of __________________________ adopts the MMA 

Model Ordinance GA Appendices (A-D) for the period of Oct. 1, 

2016September 30, 2017.  These appendices are filed with the 

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with 

Title 22 M.R.S.A. §4305(4). 

 

Signed the ______ (day) of __________________ (month)______ (year) 
by the municipal officers: 
 

__________________________  ___________________________ 

(Print Name)      (Signature) 
__________________________  ___________________________ 

(Print Name)      (Signature) 
__________________________  ___________________________ 

(Print Name)      (Signature) 
__________________________  ___________________________ 

(Print Name)      (Signature) 
__________________________  ___________________________ 

(Print Name)      (Signature) 
__________________________  ___________________________ 

(Print Name)      (Signature) 
 



Appendix A 
Effective:  10/01/16-09/30/17 

 

 
Prepared by MMA 

7/2016 
 
 

1  

GA Overall Maximums 
Metropolitan Areas 

 Persons in Household 
COUNTY 1 2 3 4 5* 

Bangor HMFA: 
Bangor, Brewer, Eddington, Glenburn, Hampden, 
Hermon, Holden, Kenduskeag, Milford, Old Town, 
Orono, Orrington, Penobscot Indian Island 
Reservation, Veazie 

 
703 

 
777 

 
981 

 
1,227 

 
1,437 

 
 

      
Penobscot County HMFA: 
Alton, Argyle UT, Bradford, Bradley, Burlington, 
Carmel, Carroll plantation, Charleston, Chester, 
Clifton, Corinna, Corinth, Dexter, Dixmont, Drew 
plantation, East Central Penobscot UT, East 
Millinocket, Edinburg, Enfield, Etna, Exeter, 
Garland, Greenbush, Howland, Hudson, Kingman 
UT, Lagrange, Lakeville, Lee, Levant, Lincoln, 
Lowell town, Mattawamkeag, Maxfield, Medway, 
Millinocket, Mount Chase, Newburgh Newport, 
North Penobscot UT, Passadumkeag, Patten, 
Plymouth, Prentiss UT, Seboeis plantation, 
Springfield, Stacyville, Stetson, Twombly UT, 
Webster plantation, Whitney UT, Winn, Woodville 

 
 
 

596 

 
 
 

673 

 
 
 

836 

 
 
 

1,082 

 
 
 

1,254 

      
Lewiston/Auburn MSA: 
Auburn, Durham, Greene, Leeds, Lewiston, Lisbon, 
Livermore, Livermore Falls, Mechanic Falls, Minot, 
Poland, Sabattus, Turner, Wales 

 
575 

 
678 

 
855 

 
1,086 

 
1,241 

      
Portland HMFA: 
Cape Elizabeth, Casco, Chebeague Island, 
Cumberland, Falmouth, Freeport, Frye Island, 
Gorham, Gray, Long Island,  North Yarmouth, 
Portland, Raymond, Scarborough, South Portland, 
Standish, Westbrook, Windham, Yarmouth; Buxton, 
Hollis, Limington, Old Orchard Beach 

 
 

838 

 
 

975 

 
 

1,220 

 
 

1,638 

 
 

1,717 

      
York/Kittery/S.Berwick HMFA: 
Berwick, Eliot, Kittery, South Berwick, York 

967 1,011 1,316 1,693 2,070 

      
Cumberland County HMFA: Baldwin, 
Bridgton, Brunswick, Harpswell, Harrison, Naples, 
New Gloucester, Pownal, Sebago 

 
750 

 
796 

 
1,058 

 
1,542 

 
1,759 



Appendix A 
Effective:  10/01/16-09/30/17 

 

 
Prepared by MMA 

7/2016 
 
 

2  

 
COUNTY 1 2 3 4 5* 

Sagadahoc HMFA: 
Arrowsic, Bath, Bowdoin, Bowdoinham, 
Georgetown, Perkins UT, Phippsburg, Richmond, 
Topsham, West Bath, Woolwich 

 
769 

 
851 

 
986 

 
1,302 

 
1,581 

      
York County HMFA:  
Acton, Alfred, Arundel, Biddeford, Cornish, Dayton, 
Kennebunk, Kennebunkport, Lebanon, Limerick, 
Lyman, Newfield, North Berwick, Ogunquit, 
Parsonsfield, Saco, Sanford, Shapleigh, Waterboro, 
Wells 

 
734 

 
860 

 
1,065 

 
1,439 

 
1,460 

*Note:  Add $75 for each additional person. 
 
Non-Metropolitan Areas 
 Persons in Household 
 

COUNTY 1 2 3 4 5* 
Aroostook County 609 624 750 948 1,037 
      
Franklin County 636 662 783 973 1,383 
      
Hancock County 653 737 936 1,231 1,277 
      
Kennebec County 612 663 846 1,075 1,141 
      
Knox County 743 745 916 1,172 1,299 
      
Lincoln County 672 743 935 1,163 1,379 
      
Oxford County 572 621 761 1,040 1,325 
      
Piscataquis County 583 663 817 1,035 1,106 
      
Somerset County  665 694 824 1,119 1,122 
      
Waldo County 655 741 876 1,191 1,266 
      
Washington County 584 633 752 957 1,159 
      

* Please Note:  Add $75 for each additional person. 



Appendix B 
Effective:  10/01/16 to 09/30/17 

 B-1 Prepared by MMA - 7/2016 
   

 
 

Food Maximums 
 

Please Note:  The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the 
U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan.    
 
 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 
   
1 45.20 194.36 
2 89.60 385.28 
3 119.80 515.14 
4 151.00 649.30 
5 194.90 838.07 
6 233.90 1,005.77 
7 257.20 1,105.96 
8 283.00 1,216.90 
   

 
 
Note:  For each additional person add $149 per month. 
 
 
 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/16-09/30/17 

 

 C-1 Prepared by MMA – 7/2016
   

GA Housing Maximums 
(Heated & Unheated Rents) 

     
NOTE: NOT ALL MUNICIPALITIES SHOULD ADOPT THESE SUGGESTED 
HOUSING MAXIMUMS!  Municipalities should ONLY consider adopting the following 
numbers, if these figures are consistent with local rent values.  If not, a market survey should be 
conducted and the figures should be altered accordingly. The results of any such survey must be 
presented to DHHS prior to adoption. Or, no housing maximums should be adopted and 
eligibility should be analyzed in terms of the Overall Maximum—Appendix A. (See Instruction 
Memo for further guidance.) 
Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 
Aroostook County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 111 476 129 556 
1 111 476 131 565 
2 130 558 159 682 
3 167 718 202 870 
4 177 762 220 947 

     
Franklin County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 117 503 136 583 
1 117 503 140 603 
2 137 591 166 715 
3 173 743 208 895 
4 258 1,108 301 1,293 

     
Hancock County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 114 489 137 590 
1 126 543 155 667 
2 163 699 198 853 
3 220 948 264 1,136 
4 220 948 271 1,166 

     
Kennebec County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 104 448 128 549 
1 109 469 138 593 
2 142 609 177 763 
3 184 792 228 980 
4 186 801 240 1,030 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/16-09/30/17 

 

 C-2 Prepared by MMA – 7/2016
   

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 
Knox County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 135 579 158 680 
1 135 579 158 680 
2 158 679 194 833 
3 207 889 250 1,077 
4 223 959 276 1,188 

     
Lincoln County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 119 513 142 609 
1 128 549 157 673 
2 162 698 198 852 
3 205 880 248 1,068 
4 242 1,039 295 1,268 

     
Oxford County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 95 408 118 509 
1 101 427 128 551 
2 122 524 158 678 
3 176 757 220 945 
4 229 985 282 1,214 

     
Piscataquis County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 104 447 123 530 
1 116 500 140 604 
2 144 621 174 749 
3 186 798 222 956 
4 192 824 236 1,016 

     
Somerset County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 120 517 141 606 
1 121 519 147 631 
2 143 615 175 753 
3 202 869 241 1,038 
4 202 869 241 1,038 

     
 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/16-09/30/17 

 

 C-3 Prepared by MMA – 7/2016
   

Non-Metropolitan FMR Areas 
Waldo County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 116 497 138 592 
1 127 547 156 671 
2 149 639 184 793 
3 211 908 255 1,096 
4 215 926 269 1,155 

     
Washington County Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 98 420 121 521 
1 102 439 131 563 
2 120 515 156 669 
3 157 674 200 862 
4 191 819 244 1,048 

     
Metropolitan FMR Areas 
Bangor HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 125 539 149 640 
1 135 583 164 707 
2 173 744 209 898 
3 219 944 263 1,132 
4 255 1,097 308 1,326 

     
Penobscot Cty. HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 101 432 124 533 
1 111 479 140 603 
2 139 599 175 753 
3 186 799 230 987 
4 213 914 266 1,143 

     
Lewiston/Auburn MSA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 96 411 119 512 
1 112 484 141 608 
2 144 618 180 772 
3 187 803 230 991 
4 210 901 263 1,130 



Appendix C 
Effective:  10/01/16-09/30/17 

 

 C-4 Prepared by MMA – 7/2016
   

Metropolitan FMR Areas 
Portland HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 157 674 180 775 
1 182 781 210 905 
2 229 983 264 1,137 
3 315 1,355 359 1,543 
4 320 1,377 373 1,606 

     
York/Kittery/S. Berwick 
HMFA 

Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 187 803 210 904 
1 190 817 219 941 
2 251 1,079 287 1,233 
3 328 1,410 372 1,598 
4 402 1,730 456 1,959 

     
Cumberland Cty. HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 136 586 160 687 
1 140 602 169 726 
2 191 821 227 975 
3 293 1,259 337 1,447 
4 330 1,419 383 1,648 

     
Sagadahoc Cty. HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 141 605 164 706 
1 153 657 182 781 
2 174 749 210 903 
3 237 1,019 281 1,207 
4 289 1,241 342 1,470 

     
York Cty. HMFA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 
0 133 570 156 671 
1 155 666 184 790 
2 193 828 228 982 
3 269 1,156 313 1,344 
4 269 1,156 314 1,349 

 



FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY 
 

MMA 
07/16 

1 

GA MAXIMUMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 

Note:  The overall maximums found in Appendices A, B, C, D, E, and F are effective from 
October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017. 

 
APPENDIX A - OVERALL MAXIMUMS  

 
County  Persons in Household 

  1 2 3 4 5 6 
        
        

NOTE:  For each additional person add $75 per month. 
 

(The applicable figures from Appendix A, once adopted, should be inserted here.) 
 
 

APPENDIX B - FOOD MAXIMUMS 
 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 
1 45.20 194.36 
2 89.60 385.28 
3 119.80 515.14 
4 151.00 649.30 
5 194.90 838.07 
6 233.90 1,005.77 
7 257.20   1,105.93 
8 283.00 1,216.90 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $149 per month. 
 
 

APPENDIX C - HOUSING MAXIMUMS 
 

 Unheated  Heated 
Number of 
Bedrooms 

 Weekly  Monthly  Weekly  Monthly 

0         
1         
2  
3         
4         

(The applicable figures from Appendix C, once adopted, should be inserted here.) 
 



FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY 
 

MMA 
07/16 

2 

APPENDIX D - UTILITIES  
 

ELECTRIC 
 

NOTE:  For an electrically heated dwelling also see “Heating Fuel” maximums below.  But remember, an 
applicant is not automatically entitled to the “maximums” establishedapplicants must demonstrate 
need. 
 

1)  Electricity Maximums for Households Without Electric Hot Water: The maximum amounts 
allowed for utilities, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding electric hot water and heat: 

Number in Household Weekly Monthly 
1 $14.00 $60.00 
2 $15.70 $67.50 
3 $17.45 $75.00 
4 $19.70 $86.00 
5 $23.10 $99.00 
6 $25.00 $107.00 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $7.50 per month. 
 

2)  Electricity Maximums for Households With Electrically Heated Hot Water:  The maximum 
amounts allowed for utilities, hot water, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding heat: 

Number in Household Weekly Monthly 
1 $20.08 $86.00 
2 $23.75 $102.00 
3 $27.70 $119.00 
4 $32.25 $139.00 
5 $37.30 $160.00 
6 $41.00 $176.00 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $10.00 per month. 
 

NOTE: For electrically heated households, the maximum amount allowed for electrical utilities per 
month shall be the sum of the appropriate maximum amount under this subsection and the appropriate 
maximum for heating fuel as provided below. 
 

APPENDIX E - HEATING FUEL  
 

Month Gallons Month Gallons 
September 50 January 225 
October 100 February 225 
November 200 March 125 
December 200 April 125 

  May 50 
 



FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY 
 

MMA 
07/16 

3 

NOTE:  When the dwelling unit is heated electrically, the maximum amount allowed for heating 
purposes will be calculated by multiplying the number of gallons of fuel allowed for that month 
by the current price per gallon.  When fuels such as wood, coal and/or natural gas are used for 
heating purposes, they will be budgeted at actual rates, if they are reasonable.  No eligible 
applicant shall be considered to need more than 7 tons of coal per year, 8 cords of wood per year, 
126,000 cubic feet of natural gas per year, or 1000 gallons of propane. 
 

APPENDIX F - PERSONAL CARE & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES 
 
 

Number in Household Weekly Amount Monthly Amount 
1-2 $10.50 $45.00 
3-4 $11.60 $50.00 
5-6 $12.80 $55.00 
7-8 $14.00 $60.00 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $1.25 per week or $5.00 per month. 
 

SUPPLEMENT FOR HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN UNDER 5 
 
When an applicant can verify expenditures for the following items, a special supplement will be budgeted 
as necessary for households with children under 5 years of age for items such as cloth or disposable 
diapers, laundry powder, oil, shampoo, and ointment up to the following amounts: 
 

Number of Children Weekly Amount Monthly Amount 
1 $12.80 $55.00 
2 $17.40 $75.00 
3 $23.30 $100.00 
4 $27.90 $120.00 

 

















































SPECIAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT 
 November 8, 2016 

 
County of Knox 
To:  Randy Gagne, Constable of the Town of Camden, Maine 
 
GREETINGS: 
In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the Inhabitants of 
the Town of Camden, required by law to vote in town affairs, to meet at the Public Safety 
Building located on Washington Street in said Town on Tuesday, November 8, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. 
in the forenoon to 8:00 p.m. in the afternoon to vote on Articles 1 through 4 at which time the 
meeting will adjourn.  
 
ARTICLE 1 
To elect a Moderator to preside at said meeting. 
 
ARTICLE 2 
Shall the voters of the Town of Camden authorize the Board of Directors of the Mid-Coast Solid 
Waste Corporation to enter into a contract for up to 5 years to dispose of Municipal Solid Waste 
to commence on or about April 1, 2018, for the fixed price of $57.85 per ton plus annual 
increases in the Consumer Price Index and on such other terms and conditions that the Board of 
Directors deem appropriate with ecomaine, a non-profit corporation owned solely by 
municipalities and located in Portland, Maine?  
 
The Select Board recommends yes. 
 
Explanation:   Camden is a member of the Mid-Coast Solid Waste Corporation (transfer station). 
The contract with the facility where we currently bring our solid waste/trash expires in March 
2018.  The MCSW Board of Directors recommends entering into a contract with ecomaine.   The 
Town must authorize the MCSW Board to enter into contracts which are longer than 3 years.    
 
ARTICLE 3 
Shall the Town vote to amend the Zoning Ordinance, Article VIII Section 5, Coastal Residential District 
(CR), Section B. Permitted Uses, by adding the following commercial uses: 
 
(12)  (9) Outdoor storage of boats, provided the screening standards of Article X, Part II, Section 3(5) are 
met and indoor storage, maintenance and construction of boats in buildings on lots 5 or more acres in size 
provided that the storage facility was in existence on January 1, 2003 and is located at least 125 feet from 
any residential lot, boundary or a public way. 
 
Explanation:    Currently boat storage is allowed in the Coastal Residential Zone.  This amendment would add 
boat maintenance and construction as an allowed use, provided the building is located on 5 or more acres of 
land and the building has existed since January 1, 2003.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ARTICLE 4 
Shall the Town vote to amend the Camden Police Ordinance Chapter VIII, Part XII “Public Noise and 
Conduct Ordinance” by adding a new section 2.5 and amending Section 4 as follows: 
 
Section 2.5 – Unacceptable Noise Level 
 
Any sound level exceeding 65 dBA when measured at the property line and persisting for 5 minutes 
or more, between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., is prohibited unless a permit has been 
obtained in advance for a specific event.   
 
Section 4 - Designated Area 
The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all areas of the Town of Camden. set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached to this ordinance and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
Explanation:  Camden currently has a noise ordinance that applies to the downtown area.   This amendment 
establishes a noise ordinance for the entire town.  It establishes a measurable noise standard of 65 decibels, 
and prohibits noise that exceeds 65 decibels between the hours of 11:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 
 
The Select Board gives notice that the Registrar of Voters will be in session at the Camden Town 
Office for the purpose of accepting and correcting the voting list during regular business hours 
Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. and at the polls Tuesday, November 8, 2016 from 
8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 
You must be a Camden registered voter to vote in any election. 
 
Given under our hands this 4th  day of October 2016. 
 
CAMDEN SELECT BOARD 
 
              
John R. French, Jr., Chairperson   Leonard Lookner, Vice-Chairperson 
 
              
Donald A. White, Jr.     James Heard 
 
       
Marc Ratner, Secretary 

 
 
A True Attest Copy:          
                                                      Katrina Oakes, Town Clerk 
 
 
RETURN 
I certify that I have notified the Voters of Camden of the time and place of the Town of Camden 
Special Town Meeting and the Five Town Community School District Special Budget Validation 
Referendum to be held November 8, 2016  by posting an attested copy of the Notice of Warrants 
at the Camden Public Safety Building, Camden Town Office, Camden Public Library, and the 
Camden Post Office on       , 2016. 
 
            
      Randy Gagne, Constable 



To Katrina Oakes, Town Clerk: 
 
We, the Town of Camden Select Board, hereby order that the following questions be placed on a 
municipal referendum ballot to be voted upon at the November 8, 2016 election: 
 

1) Shall the voters of the Town of Camden authorize the Board of Directors of the Mid-Coast Solid 
Waste Corporation to enter into a contract for up to 5 years to dispose of Municipal Solid Waste to 
commence on or about April 1, 2018, for the fixed price of $57.85 per ton plus annual increases in 
the Consumer Price Index and on such other terms and conditions that the Board of Directors 
deem appropriate with ecomaine, a non-profit corporation owned solely by municipalities and 
located in Portland, Maine?  

 
The Select Board recommends yes. 
 
Explanation:   Camden is a member of the Mid-Coast Solid Waste Corporation (transfer station). 
The contract with the facility where we currently bring our solid waste/trash expires in March 
2018.  The MCSW Board of Directors recommends entering into a contract with ecomaine.   The 
Town must authorize the MCSW Board to enter into contracts which are longer than 3 years.    

 
2) Shall the Town vote to amend the Zoning Ordinance, Article VIII Section 5, Coastal 

Residential District (CR), Section B. Permitted Uses, by adding the following commercial 
uses: 

 
(12)  (9) Outdoor storage of boats, provided the screening standards of Article X, Part II, 
Section 3(5) are met and indoor storage, maintenance and construction of boats in buildings 
on lots 5 or more acres in size provided that the storage facility was in existence on January 
1, 2003 and is located at least 125 feet from any residential lot, boundary or a public way. 
 
Explanation:    Currently boat storage is allowed in the Coastal Residential Zone.  This 
amendment would add boat maintenance and construction as an allowed use, provided the 
building is located on 5 or more acres of land and the building has existed since January 1, 
2003.   
 

3) Shall the Town vote to amend the Camden Police Ordinance Chapter VIII, Part XII  
“Public Noise and Conduct Ordinance” by adding a new section 2.5 and amending  
Section 4 as follows: 
 
Section 2.5 – Unacceptable Noise Level 
Any sound level exceeding 65 dBA when measured at the property line and persisting for 5 
minutes or more, between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., is prohibited unless a permit has 
been obtained in advance for a specific event.   
 
Section 4 - Designated Area 
The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all areas of the Town of Camden. set forth in 
Exhibit A, attached to this ordinance and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
Explanation:  Camden currently has a noise ordinance that applies to the downtown area.   This 
amendment establishes a noise ordinance for the entire town.  It establishes a measurable noise 
standard of 65 decibels, and prohibits noise that exceeds 65 decibels between the hours of 11:00 
p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

 
 



TOWN OF CAMDEN SELECT BOARD: 
 
Dated October 4, 2016. 
 
 
            
John R. French, Jr., Chairperson  Leonard Lookner., Vice Chairperson 
 
            
James Heard     Donald A. White, Jr. 
 
      
Marc Ratner 





























Base Bid
The Penobscot Company $19,258.00

Chesterfield Assoicates, Inc. $70,790.76 Hemlock Timber & Glulam Beams
$79,459.09 Oak Timber & Glulam Beams
$75,900 Hemlock Timber & Steel Beams
$84,600 for Oak Timber & Steel Beams

Bids were opened on Friday, September 23, 2016.  Witnessed by 
Town Manager Patricia Finnigan and Wastewater Superintendent Dave Bolstridge 

DAM PLATFORMS INSTALLATION & 
SLUICE CHUTE REPAIRS RESULTS 09.23.16

















 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS 
 

The Town of Camden will receive sealed bids for a “Dam Platforms Installation and Sluice Chute Repairs” in 
accordance with the NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS, BID SPECIFICATIONS and BID 
FORM.  All of the bid documents are a material part of this NOTICE and are incorporated by reference into this 
NOTICE. 
 
 The Select Board shall make an award of the contract by considering, among other things, the lowest 
price for a proposal meeting the bid specifications.  The Town of Camden reserves the right to waive any 
formalities; to reject any or all bids, or to accept any bid it considers to be in the best interest of the Town after 
considering quality, function, service, and initial cost, without obligation to consider price only.  The Town's 
decision in all cases will be final.  Tabulation will be mailed to vendors upon request. 
 
 If a bidder finds discrepancies in, or omissions from the Project documents, or is in doubt as to the 
meaning of the Project documents, the bidder shall, at once, notify the Town Manager, in writing; and upon 
receipt of such notification, the Town Manager shall send additional written clarification concerning the issues 
raised in the NOTICE to all prospective bidders. 
 
 Deviations from the Contract Documents: All deviations from the contract documents must be noted in 
detail by the bidder, in writing, at the time of submittal of the formal bid.  Bidders are expressly informed that 
any material deviation from the contract documents may be a basis for rejection of the proposal by the Select 
Board at the time that the Board considers an award of the contract. 
 
 Prices must be firm for at least sixty (60) days. 
 
 At the time of the opening of proposals, each bidder shall be presumed to have read and be thoroughly 
familiar with the specifications in this BID NOTICE and all enclosures.  The failure or omission of any bidder 
to receive or examine any form, instrument, or document shall in no way relieve any bidder from any obligation 
in respect to the proposal submitted.  Any bidder to whom a contract is awarded shall be responsible for 
observing applicable standards for fair employment practices and work safety. 
 
 For purposes of this BID NOTICE and all Project documents, the term "bidder" shall mean any person, 
company or organization submitting a Proposal pursuant to this NOTICE and the term "bid" shall mean a 
Proposal submitted by a bidder. 
 

 Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope marked "Dam Platforms Installation and Sluice Chute Repairs” 
and received in the Office of the Camden Town Manager, P.O. Box 1207, 29 Elm Street, Camden, Maine 04843 
on or before noon, Friday, September 23, 2016.  (No FAX bids will be accepted) at which time all bids will 
be opened and read aloud.  Bidders are invited to attend.  No proposal shall be accepted in the event that the 
envelope containing the proposal is not correctly marked as identified in the preceding sentence and 
sealed.  Prior to an award of the contract, no town official has been authorized to make any oral modifications 
or changes in the terms and specifications of this NOTICE.   
         
  David Bolstridge, Superintendent  Janice Esancy 
  Wastewater Department   Manager’s Assistant 
  20 Lions Lane, PO Box 1207   PO Box 1207, 29 Elm Street 
  Camden, Maine  04843   Camden, Maine  04843 
  (207) 236-7955    (207) 236-3353 ext 101 
   

 
 



 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

 
BID FORM 

  
 
 The undersigned bidder acknowledges receipt of the NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS, 
BID FORM, AND BID SPECIFICATIONS entitled " Dam Platforms Installation and Sluice Chute 
Repairs” and hereby proposes to provide the work as described in the specifications for the bid price shown: 
 
             BID PRICE 
 
 
               
 
 
 
Name of Individual / Company:  _______________________________________________ 
 
Address:     _______________________________________________ 
 
      _______________________________________________ 
     
Printed Name of Person Signing Form: _______________________________________________ 
 
Telephone:              
 
Email:                 
 
Signature:     _______________________________________________ 
  
Date:               
 
 
 
 

Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope marked   
"Dam Platforms Installation and Sluice Chute Repairs 

and received in the Office of the Camden Town Manager,  
P.O. Box 1207, 29 Elm Street, Camden, Maine 04843  

on or before noon, Friday, September 23, 2016.  (No FAX bids will be accepted.) 
 
 



Base Bid
Farley & Son, Inc. $17,900.00

Bids were opened on Friday, September 23, 2016.  Witnessed by 
Town Manager Patricia Finnigan and Wastewater Superintendent Dave Bolstridge 

SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM PIPE 
REPAIR RESULTS 09.23.16



 
TOWN OF CAMDEN 

NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS 
 
 The Town of Camden will receive sealed bids for a “Sewer Collection System Pipe Repair” in 
accordance with the NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO BIDDERS, BID SPECIFICATIONS and BID FORM.  
All of the bid documents are a material part of this NOTICE and are incorporated by reference into this 
NOTICE. 
 
 The Select Board shall make an award of the contract by considering, among other things, the lowest 
price for a proposal meeting the bid specifications.  The Town of Camden reserves the right to waive any 
formalities; to reject any or all bids, or to accept any bid it considers to be in the best interest of the Town after 
considering quality, function, service, and initial cost, without obligation to consider price only.  The Town's 
decision in all cases will be final.  Tabulation will be mailed to vendors upon request. 
 
 If a bidder finds discrepancies in, or omissions from the Project documents, or is in doubt as to the 
meaning of the Project documents, the bidder shall, at once, notify the Town Manager, in writing; and upon 
receipt of such notification, the Town Manager shall send additional written clarification concerning the issues 
raised in the NOTICE to all prospective bidders. 
 
 Deviations from the Contract Documents: All deviations from the contract documents must be noted in 
detail by the bidder, in writing, at the time of submittal of the formal bid.  Bidders are expressly informed that 
any material deviation from the contract documents may be a basis for rejection of the proposal by the Select 
Board at the time that the Board considers an award of the contract. 
 
 Prices must be firm for at least sixty (60) days. 
 
 At the time of the opening of proposals, each bidder shall be presumed to have read and be thoroughly 
familiar with the specifications in this BID NOTICE and all enclosures.  The failure or omission of any bidder 
to receive or examine any form, instrument, or document shall in no way relieve any bidder from any obligation 
in respect to the proposal submitted.  Any bidder to whom a contract is awarded shall be responsible for 
observing applicable standards for fair employment practices and work safety. 
 
 For purposes of this BID NOTICE and all Project documents, the term "bidder" shall mean any person, 
company or organization submitting a Proposal pursuant to this NOTICE and the term "bid" shall mean a 
Proposal submitted by a bidder. 
 
 Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope marked "Sewer Collection System Pipe Repair” and received 
in the Office of the Camden Town Manager, P.O. Box 1207, 29 Elm Street, Camden, Maine 04843 on or before 
noon, Friday, September 23, 2016.  (No FAX bids will be accepted) at which time all bids will be opened 
and read aloud.  Bidders are invited to attend.  No proposal shall be accepted in the event that the envelope 
containing the proposal is not correctly marked as identified in the preceding sentence and sealed.  Prior 
to an award of the contract, no town official has been authorized to make any oral modifications or changes in 
the terms and specifications of this NOTICE.   
         
  David Bolstridge, Superintendent  Janice Esancy 
  Wastewater Department   Manager’s Assistant 
  20 Lions Lane, PO Box 1207   PO Box 1207, 29 Elm Street 
  Camden, Maine  04843   Camden, Maine  04843 
  (207) 236-7955    (207) 236-3353 ext 101 
   

 



 
 

TOWN OF CAMDEN 
 

BID FORM 
  
 
 The undersigned bidder acknowledges receipt of the NOTICE AND INFORMATION TO 
BIDDERS, BID FORM, AND BID SPECIFICATIONS entitled "” and hereby proposes to provide the 
work as described in the specifications for the bid price shown: 
 
             BID PRICE 
 
 
               
 
 
 
Name of Individual / Company:  _______________________________________________ 
 
Address:     _______________________________________________ 
 
      _______________________________________________ 
     
Printed Name of Person Signing Form: _______________________________________________ 
 
Telephone:              
 
Email:                 
 
Signature:     _______________________________________________ 
  
Date:               
 
 
 
 

Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope marked   
"Sewer Collection System Pip Repair"  

and received in the Office of the Camden Town Manager,  
P.O. Box 1207, 29 Elm Street, Camden, Maine 04843  

on or before noon, Friday, September 23, 2017.  (No FAX bids will be accepted.) 
 
 











September 30, 2016



This page intentionally left blank.



Town of Camden, Maine
Wastewater and Seabright Hydro 

Budget FY 17

3 Table of Contents 3

Page 
Number

Town Manager's Budget Letter 5-6
Reading the Budget 7-8
Town Directory, Staff Members 9
Organizational Chart; Staffing Levels 10
Wastewater History 11
Income, User Fees 12-13
Statistical Information 14-15
Reserve Funds 16

17-18
Financial Policies 19

Budget Comparisons & Summary 21
Summary of Expenses and Revenues-Wastewater 23
Summary of Budgets  

Select Board's Wastewater Budget Proposal/Comparison to FY 16 25
Town Manager's Wastewater Budget Proposal/Comparison to FY 16 26
Department Head's Wastewater Budget Proposal/Comparison to FY 16 27

Condensed Summary of Wastewater Proposals Department Head, Manager, Select Board 28-29
Seabright Hydro Budget Summary 31

01 Administration Summary 35
Administration Budget 37-38

05 Sewer Plant Operations & Maintenance Summary 39
Sewer Plant O&M Budget 40

15 Sewer Pump Station Summary 41
Sewer Pump Station Budget 42
Capital Improvements Statement 45

25 Capital Improvements Plan Summary 47
Capital Improvements Budget 48
CIP - Five (5) Year Plan 49-50

35 Debt Summary 53
Debt Budget 54

01 Administration & Operations Summary 57
Administration & Operations Budget 58

Terms, Accounting Terminology, Definitions 61-66

General Information

Executive Summary

GLOSSARY

Fund 9, Seabright Hydro 80

Fund 2, Wastewater 60

Budget Summaries



This page intentionally left blank.







Town of Camden, Maine

7 Reading the Budget 7

Organizational Chart

Wastewater History

Income and User Fees

Stastical Information and Charts

Executive Summary

Financial Policies

Budget Comparison and  Summary

Budget Process

Budget Comparisons and Summary (Budget v. Actual)

Expenditures and Revenues Summaries

Departmental Budgets

Town Manager's Letter
The Town Manager's Letter serves as an introduction to the budget and lays out her recommendations for the budget proposal.

Wastewater, Staff Members
The Directory lists the Select Board members, the Wastewater management team, as well as the staff personnel.

Staffing Levels
Staffing levels include full-time as well as part-time personnel.  Part-time staffing levels can change year-to-year.

An explanation of how the Wastewater facility gets its funding and what the users of the system pay for.

A number of charts are included depicting the flow of wastewater to the Harbor.

A summary of the town government operations and management; the Wastewater Department as an "Enterprise Fund", and the development 
of the budget proposal.

An Overview of How to Read the Budget Document
The budget is broken out into a number of different sections.   The first sections leading up to the actual "numbers" is informational about the 
community, including demographics and statistical information about the Town. 

The organization chart depicts the town manager form of government, and designates the municipal officials involved in maintaining and 
supporting the Wastewater department.

The Wastewater Department started in the year 1970, long before surrounding Towns decided to get into the Wastewater business.

The Summary of the proposed expenses and revenues, as well as previous budgets - both budgeted and actual costs.

The Wastewater budget is separate from the town's general fund budget, as it operates as an Enterprise Fund.  In governmental accounting, an 
Enterprise Fund provides goods or services to the public for a fee that makes the entity self-supporting. 

Budget requests of the Department Head, Town Manager and Select Board are compared to previous year's budgets. 

The Expenditures  and Revenues Summaries includes totals for all departments within Wastewater, comparing proposed expenses and 
revenues to previous year's budgets.

Each budget includes both appropriations (also known as expenses) and revenues (fees for services and goods purchased) applicable to a 
particular department.

Each department page header includes the department name and number.  The department number is designated by two sets of numbers (i.e. 
60-01), the first is the department and the second is the section of a particular department and becomes the entire "department number".   In 
the example below the number 60-01 represents the Snow Bowl - Administration budget.

Wastewater is an enterprise fund that operattes within Town government.  Finaical policies are established and managed by the Town.



Town of Camden, Maine

8 Reading the Budget 8

Department 60-01
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

Account Name

FY 13 Actual

FY 14 Actual

FY 15 Actual

FY 16 Budget  Y-T-D

FY 17 Budget

Glossary

Putting it all Together

After review and consideration of the Town Manager's recommendations  the Select Board adopts a final budget.  The last 
column will form the basis for the next fiscal year budget.

A glossary of budgetary and financial terms is included in the budget document, providing definitions and a better understanding of financials 
and budgetary terminology.

The budget is a series of spreadsheets whereby budget requests are presented by department.  Recommendations are 
considered at various stages and carefully reviewed.  The design of the budget is methodical in nature, in an order and format 
that helps the user to easily access information.

Budget v Year-To-Date Expenses and Revenues for the fiscal year July 2015 through June 2016.

Actual Expenses and Revenues during the fiscal year July 2013 through June 2014.

Actual Expenses and Revenues during the fiscal year July 2014 through June 2015.

At the beginning of each departmental budget there is a summary page.  The summary page summarizes the requests for Personnel Services, 
Employee Benefits, Supplies,  Contractual Services, Other Contractual Services, and Capital Outlay, as applicable, noted in the left-hand 
corner of the summary document.  The summary page also includes graphs depicting the expenses and revenues pertaining to each department 
over time.

Actual Expenses and Revenues during the fiscal year July 2012 through June 2013.

Following is an example of the header of a budget page:

An Overview of How to Read the Budget Document - continued

Department 
Head

Expenditures are indicated next to their corresponding line item number.  Across the page are columns representing the "Actual" expenses 
for three previous years; the current budget and Year-To-Date expenses; and then the proposals of the Department Head, the Town 
Manager, and the final approved budget of the Select Board.

To summarize: Use the Department Number as in the example, and the second set of numbers for the entire line item.  The 
tracking number then becomes 60-01-01-01, which translates to the Wastewater-Administration Budget-Personnel Services-
Full-time Wages .  

Each account is assigned a name.  Account descriptions are universal so comparisons between departments are easily made.  
For example, Personnel Services 01 would be the same account name and number, and the second set of numbers Full-time 
Wages 01, are the same numbers for each department.

FY 17
FY 16

Proposed FY 
17

Proposed FY 
17

Select BoardTown 
ManagerAPPROPRIATIONS APPROVED



Town of Camden, Maine

9 Town Directory, Staff Members 9

Marc Ratner James Heard Leonard Lookner
 mratner@camdenmaine.gov jheard@camdenmaine.gov llookner@camdenmaine.gov

Term Expires: June 2019 Term Expires: June 2017 Term Expires: June 2018

Wastewater Commissioners

Town Manager and Management Team

 pfinnigan@camdenmaine.gov
Patricia A. Finnigan

Town Manager
236-3353 ext 113

Virginia B. Lindsey
vlindsey@camdenmaine.gov

Finance Director
236-3353 ext 117

John R. French, Jr. , Chair
jfrenchjr@camden.me.gov
Term Expires: June 2018

Donald White-Vice Chair
dwhite@camden.me.gov
Term Expires: June 217

Wastewater Superintendent
 dbolstridge@camdenmaine.gov

David Bolstridge

236-7955



Town of Camden, Maine

10 Wastewater Organizational Chart 10

                                                                       Proposed
FY 10 FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17

Full-time 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3

Full-time 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Seasonal 1 1 1 1

FY 17

Camden Wastewater - Organizational Chart

Number of Positions

Proposed new employee: Engineer (formerly a seasonal employee)

Staffing Levels and Changes

Sewer Plant

Wastewater Department
Administration

Wastewater Commissioners

Finance Director

The Maine Water 
Company (Billing)

Wastewater 
Superindendent

Assistant Wastewater 
Superindendent

Civil Engineer

Equipment Mechanic

Utility Operator
and

Press Operator & Assistant 
Mechanic

Code Enforcement
Officer

Contracted 
Engineers

Town Manager



Town of Camden, Maine

11 Wastewater History 11

Physical Address:

     Camden, Maine  04843

Communities and industries were given NPDES permits based on water quality in coordination with technology based 
standards that required reductions in pollutants to levels that would protect fish, wildlife and public water supplies, to name 
a few.  Over time, other pollutants of concern were added to permits as scientific data became available, and other pollutant 
limits are at the final stages of implementation (e.g. nutrients, pharmaceuticals/endocrine disrupters).

The Camden Wastewater Treatment Plant was constructed in 1969 and was brought on line in 1970.  Camden was five or 
six years ahead of most communities in Maine given many wastewater plants came on line in the 1975 to 1976 timeframe.  
The old combined sewer system was separated beginning in 1967 which proved to be a very wise move given today’s 
construction costs.

The plant received an aeration tank upgrade in 1996.  The old technology surface aerators were replaced with a high 
efficiency fine bubble aeration system.  A mechanical building was also built to house the new aeration system blowers.

Another, more substantial upgrade was carried out in 2007.  The metal work in both clarifiers was replaced along with 
associated piping. The digesters were upgraded with a fine bubble aeration system and a new digester blower building was 
constructed to house two new high efficiency blowers.  Some of the piping in the return pump building was also replaced.  
Currently, an engineering evaluation is taking place to address equipment that is at the end of its useful life.  A pump station 
engineering evaluation was carried out in FY2016 to address the three pump stations that have not received upgrades.  An 
evaluation of the collection system piping is also taking place and will take four or more years to complete.

     20 Lions Lane

In the 1960’s and 70’s communities became aware of the environmental damage and degradation of natural resources 
caused by water pollution.  One event in 1969, the Cuyahoga River in Ohio catching fire due the level of pollution in the 
river, brought the issue of water pollution to the forefront.  On December 2, 1970 Congress and President Nixon established 
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).  In 1972 the Federal Water Pollution Control Act was 
amended and greatly overhauled.  This was followed by the Clean Water Act (CWA) in 1977.  The 1972 amendments 
established the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) which is a permit system for regulating water 
point sources of pollution.



Town of Camden, Maine

12 Income, User Fees 12

Enterprise Fund

User Fees

Current Operations; Future Debt

The Town of Camden operates the Wastewater Department as an "enterprise fund".   What this accounting terminology 
means essentially is that the Wastewater Department creates its own income to support its operations.  GAAP requires local 
governments to use "enterprise funds" to account for "business-type activities" - similar to activities found in the private 
sector.  These business type activities are primarily funded through user fees and charges.

User Fees are determined based on usage of the system by "equivalent users".   Because Camden does not have systems in 
place to gauge the exact use by any residence or business activity, the Town relies on the usage captured by The Maine 
Water Company in the amount of water flowing to each location.  In most cases the amount of water going into a building 
equates to the amount that then needs to leave the building (in theory).  There are exceptions however; including a business 
or private residence that uses a large amount of water for gardening or washing large volumes of vehicles or equipment, 
when that water does not then get sent into the sewer system.  In these instances, an agreement can be made to lower the 
usage fees based on an estimate of what will not flow into the sewer system.

The revenue gained through billing users of the system are then used to fund the operations of the system; this includes 
wages and benefits for the personnel required to keep the system up and running, as well as other operational costs.  
Currently, the Town supports the Wastewater enterprise by raising taxes to pay for most of the long-term debt of the 
Wastewater activities.  In coming years, the debt of Wastewater will be borne more by the users of the system by creating a 
"debt fee" for those users of the system, thereby alleviating the need to rely on taxpayers to support the infrastructure 
requirements.  This may take several years to bring about, as change is often difficult for many to absorb.  For now, the 
revenue generated will be used to support day-to-day requirements of maintaining the system; long-term infrastructure 
improvements currently "on the books" shall be maintained as they have been.  Any new debt will be assessed the 
Wastewater enterprise and a debt fee shall be established in the coming years.  

How does the Wastewater Department Derive its Income to Operate?



Town of Camden, Maine

13 Income, User Fees 13

Current Wastewater Rates

October, 2015
Metered Rate Minimum

Section 10 Quarterly $5.62 $56.20 10
Section 12 Seasonal $5.62 $224.80
Section 13 Well Users ( w/ sewer connection)

Base 120 12 $674.29
0-2 Users 20 $56.20
3 Users 30 $84.30
4 Users 40 $90.35
5 Users 50 $95.91
6 Users 60 $101.26
7 Users 70 $106.84
601 Users 65 $3,374.92
Users-Base 90 95 $505.75

Date Metered Rate Minimum Maximum
October, 2015 Quarterly $5.62 $56.20

In Comparison: Seasonal $224.80
Well Users $56.20 $3,374.92

October, 2014 Quarterly $4.40 $40.43
$10.10 per cu ft Seasonal $161.60
$70.70 min/qtr Well Users $40.43 $2,428.00

October, 2011 Quarterly $3.85 $38.50
Seasonal $154.00

48 per qtr Well Users $38.50 $2,313.00
October, 2010 Quarterly $3.75 $37.50

Seasonal $150.00
Well Users $37.50 $2,253.00

October, 2009 Quarterly $3.55 $35.50
Seasonal $142.00
Well Users $35.50 $2,133.00

October, 2008 Quarterly $3.40 $34.00
Seasonal $136.00
Well Users $34.00 $2,043.00

October, 2007 Quarterly $3.25 $32.50
Seasonal $130.00
Well Users $32.50 $1,953.25

October, 2006 Quarterly $3.15 $31.50
Seasonal $126.00
Well Users $31.50 $1,893.00

Per 1(00) cu ft 
measure

Wastewater rates in Camden are first determined in sections.   Each user must pay at least the minimum as established 
herein:

A cubic foot is approximately 7.48052 gallons.

User Fee

Debt Fee
plus

Rockport FY 17

Rate History



Town of Camden
Knox County - State of Maine

14 Statistical Information 14

Town Ownership/Management 1970
Form of Government Select Board/Town Manager
Number of full-time employees-Wastewater: 6
Number of seasonal employees-Wastewater: 1

Wastewater Plant Pollutant Quantities Treated

Statistical Information



Town of Camden
Knox County - State of Maine

15 Statistical Information 15



Town of Camden, Maine

16 Reserve Funds 16

The following Reserves have been established for the Wastewater enterprise:

Wastewater Accrued Benfits Reserve 24,784$        

Treatment Plant Reserve 206,446$      
Purpose: Capital equipment replacement.

Inflow & Infultration Reserve: 153,220$      

Intown Sewer Reserve 215,241$      

Pump Stations Reserve 95,530$        

TOTAL Wastewater Reserves 695,221$      

Wastewater Reserve Funds

Purpose: Pay employee wages, benefits upon resigation 
or retirement.

Purpose: Repair/replace sewer line to prevent outside 
fluids, such as rain water, from infiltrating the sewer 
system.  

Purpose: Repair/replace sewer lines within the more 
populated areas of town whenever necessary to maintain 
or repair the system.

Purpose: Future repairs to pump stations within the 
system.

Reserve funds are established either through appropriation, donation, excess suprlus, or other means for a 
specified purpose.

Reserve Name Balance - June 30, 2016



Town of Camden, Maine

17 Executive Summary 17

Incorporation

Town Government

Administration 60-01

Sewer Plant Operations & Maintenance 60-05

The Town operates under the Select Board - Town Manager form of municipal government.  Policy making 
and legislative authority are vested in the five member Select Board, which is elected.  The Select Board 
members are elected to serve staggered three-year terms.  The Select Board represents the executive branch of 
the municipal government, of which the Select Board members are the chief executive officers.  The duty of the 
Select Board is to execute the will of the people, to manage Town affairs, and to provide leadership and 
oversight on issues of importance to the Town.  

Megunticook Plantation was incorporated  as the Town of Camden on February 17, 1791, while 
part of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  Nearly 100 years to the day later Rockport separated from 
Camden and became its own Town.  What remained of the town continued under the name of the Town of 
Camden under the laws of the State of Maine in the year 1891.  

Town Charter
By Town Charter the municipality is required to have an annual budget, reviewed by a budget committee, and 
approved by a majority of the Town's Select Board.  However, the Town's Charter is silent as it relates to the 
review of the Wastewater budget.  The Wastewater Department was designated as an "enterprise fund" several 
years ago; therefor there is no requirement that the budget committee review the budget prepared annually for 
the sewer operations for the municipality.

Budget Review

The Administration Department provides the necessary funding for the municipal management personnel 
required to support to the Wastewater department, as well as minimal office expenses to perform and maintain 
financial responsibilities.  Insurances, billing costs, and other miscellaneous expenses also are paid through the 
Administration budget.  Billing for Wastewater charges is provided by The Maine Water Company; financial 
records are then forwarded to the Finance Director for review, and financial records are updated and maintained 
by the Town.  The Finance Director, and Town Treasurer, along with the Town Manager, is responsible for 
tracking accounts and implementing the lien process whenever necessary, for unpaid sewer fees.

Funding in the Sewer Plant Operations & Maintenance budget supports the wages and benefits of the crew, as 
well as providing funding to repair and maintain the physical plan and its operations on a day-to-day basis.

In future years, the Wastewater budget will become a sub-section of the Town's annual budget.  Adding the 
Wastewater budget to the Town's annual budget will not change the fact that it is an "enterprise fund".  What it 
will do, is let taxpayers know whether or not tax money will be used to help support the operations of the 
Wastewater facility.  



Town of Camden, Maine

18 Executive Summary 18

Seabright 80-01

Wastewater Pump Station Operations & Maintenance 60-15
Funding in the Wastewater Pump Station Operations and Maintenance helps maintain the pump station, which is 
critical for maintaining an efficiently working sewer system.

In prior years, the debt associated with the Wastewater enterprise has been supported solely by the taxpayers in 
the Town's general budget.  Hereafter, efforts will be made to accurately account for ALL expenses and revenues 
of the Wastewater operations; thereby making it a true enterprise fund.  Currently, there are a number of bonds 
for which infrastructure work was completed for the benefit of the Wastewater system.  These bonds are shown 
in the Debt budget, with an offsetting revenue from the Town's regular general fund budget, with the exception 
of a recent bond.  Future budgets may incorporate a "debt fee" as well as a "user fee".  The debt fee will be used 
only to pay for debt; whereas user fees will pay for the operations and maintenance.  

The operations of the Seabright Dam are included in the Wastewater budget simply because it is managed by the 
Wastewater Superintendent.  Funding for the administration and operations is reimbursed by the Town.  Some of 
the operating costs can be offset by the electricity generated by the dam.

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 60-25
The purpose of the CIP is to systematically identify, plan, schedule, finance, track and monitor capital 
infrastructure and assets to ensure cost-effectiveness as well as conformance to polices.  The policies require the 
Town to operate and maintain its infrastructure and assets in a manner that protects the public investment and 
ensures achievement of their maximum useful life.

Funding in the CIP may also include funding to increase reserve accounts.  Reserve accounts are accounts 
established for specific purposes; funding is usually established and increased year-to-year so as not to have to 
maintain level funding of operating costs.

Debt 60-30

This budgets also includes five (5) year Capital Improvement Plan, which will be reviewed and carefully 
considered in the comig year.



Town of Camden, Maine

19 Financial Policies 19

The current Wastewater budget includes:
Direct Costs

Future budgets may include:

Budgeted Surplus

As an Enterprise Fund the Town can show the full cost of the services provided by the Wastewater 
Fund, and is able to retain investment income and surplus.

Even though an Enterprise Fund may be self-supporting, it is permissible to subsidize the expenses 
from the Town's general fund.  It is important to note that the Wastewater operations are a department 
of the Town and subject to ordinary municipal finance procedures.

Employee Wages and Benefits

Financial Policies

The Town of Camden operates on a July to June fiscal year.  The Wastewater Fund is a 
department within the Town; it is owned by the Town and operates an "Enterprise Fund" for the benefit 
of the public.

As an Enterprise Fund, revenues gained through user rates and fees help offset operating costs, with the 
goal that the Wastewater Department can operate with little or no financial help from the Town.

In years when expenses exceed income, the Wastewater Fund can either "ride it out" for future 
anticipated increases in revenue, or they can ask the Town for financial support.

As an Enterprise Fund within town government all expenses and revenue for the Wastewater Fund are 
kept separate from regular governmental activities.  However, management of the Wastewater Fund still 
rests with the select board/ town manager form of government.

The Enterprise Fund - or Wastewater Budget includes costs directly related to its operations and 
ability to generate income.

Costs directly related to the Enterprise Fund
Wages and benefits paid on behalf of personnel 
employed to work at the wastewater facility to maintain 
operations.

Legal and borrowing 
costs

A budgeted surplus when the prior year's operation 
results in little or no retained earnings

Expenses directly related to the Enterprise Fund for 
debt, bond counsel, or any financial services related to 
the Fund



This page intentionally left blank.



Town of Camden, Maine

21 Budget Comparisons & Summary 21

06/30/16
Department Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15
Expenditures 

     Wastewater 778,545  923,959     945,099   1,196,070    1,116,641    1,466,665 22.6% 1,271,885 -             

     Seabright 22,422    17,137       10,657     17,150        11,123         38,000     121.6% 37,500      -             

Total Expenditures 800,967 941,096 955,756 1,213,220 1,127,764 1,504,664 24.0% 1,309,384 - 

Revenues

     Wastewater 820,020  864,345     860,597   1,196,070    1,105,221    1,492,680 1,272,380 -             
     Seabright 25,223    20,440       19,194     20,000        9,676           12,000     -40.0% 37,500      -             
Total Revenues 845,243 884,785 879,791 1,216,070 1,114,897 1,504,680 23.7% 1,309,879 - 

NET WW and Seabright 
BUDGETS (44,276) 56,310 75,964 (2,850) 12,868 (15) -99.5% (495) - 

Difference from Previous Year 100,586 19,654 (78,814) 15,718 2,835 2,355 
% Difference from Previous Year -227.18% 34.90% -103.75% -99.46% -82.63%

Wastewater AND Seabright Hyrdo Budget
Budget Comparison & Summary

Department 
Head

Town Manager Select Board
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Expenditures
Revenues

 -
 200,000
 400,000
 600,000
 800,000

 1,000,000
 1,200,000
 1,400,000
 1,600,000

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 Proposed FY
17

Proposed FY
17

FY 17

Actual Actual Actual Budget YTD APPROVED

05/16/16 Dept Head Town
Manager

Select Board

Wastewater and Seabright Budget
FY 13 through Proposed FY 17

Expenditures Revenues



This page intentionally left blank.



Town of Camden, Maine

23 Summary Expenses Revenues 23

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15
WASTEWATER BUDGET
60-01 Administration 404,262  442,737  475,397  478,520    476,973    474,770   -0.8% 337,490    -29.5% -             
60-05 Plant & Collections 236,044  226,539  220,553  309,500    272,476    548,560   77.2% 514,060    66.1% -             
60-15 Pump Station 43,533    40,363    50,854    72,600      56,903      70,000     -3.6% 70,000      -3.6% -             
60-25 Capital 94,706    214,320  198,295  335,450    310,289    184,350   -45.0% 161,350    -51.9% -             
60-30 Debt 188,985   0.0% 188,985    0.0% -             

Sub-Total 778,545 923,959 945,099 1,196,070 1,116,641 1,466,665 22.6% 1,271,885 - 

80-01 Admin & Operations 22,422 17,137 10,657 17,150 11,123 38,000 121.6% 37,500 118.7% - 
22,422 17,137 10,657 17,150 11,123 38,000 37,500 - 

Total Expenses 800,967 941,096 955,756 1,213,220 1,127,764 1,504,664 24.0% 1,309,384 7.9% - 

140,129 14,660 257,464 291,444 96,164 
17.49% 1.56% 26.94% 24.02% 7.93%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD
FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

WASTEWATER BUDGET
60-01 Administration 110         50           95           -               80             -               -                -             
60-05 Plant & Collections 819,910  864,295  860,502  1,196,070 1,105,141 1,365,300 1,145,000 -             
60-15 Pump Station -             -             -             -               -               -               -                -             
60-25 Capital -             -             -             -               -               -               -                -             
60-30 Debt 127,380   0.0% 127,380    0.0% -             

Sub-Total 820,020 864,345 860,597 1,196,070 1,105,221 1,492,680 1,272,380 - 

80-01 Admin & Operations 25,223 20,440 19,194 20,000 9,676 12,000 -40.0% 37,500 87.5% - 
25,223 20,440 19,194 20,000 9,676 12,000 37,500 - 

Total Revenues 845,243 884,785 879,791 1,216,070 1,114,897 1,504,680 23.7% 1,309,879 7.7% - 

39,542 (4,994) 336,279 288,610 93,809 
4.68% -0.56% 38.22% 23.73% 7.71%

NET BUDGET (44,276) 56,310 75,964 (2,850) 12,868 (15) -99.5% (495) -82.6% - 

Difference from Previous Year 100,586 19,654 (78,814) 2,835 2,355 
% Difference from Previous Year -227.18% 34.90% -103.75% -99.46% -82.63%

Revenues 
Exceed 

Expenses

Revenues 
did NOT 

cover 
Expenses

Revenues 
did NOT 

cover 
Expenses

Revenues 
Exceed 

Expenses

Revenues did 
NOT cover 
Expenses

Revenues 
Exceed 

Expenses

Revenues 
Exceed 

Expenses

WASTEWATER and SEABRIGHT HYDRO BUDGET
Summary of Expenses and Revenues

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Department

EXPENDITURES SUMMARY

REVENUES SUMMARY

Department 
Head

Town Manager Select Board
Department APPROVED

Department 
Head

Town Manager

SEABRIGHT HYDRO

SEABRIGHT HYDRO

Select Board
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17



This page intentionally left blank.



Town of Camden, Maine

25 Select Board Comparison 25

FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 261,515     -                143,400     -                    51,105        -                    14,000       -                
60-05 Plant & Collections -                -                -                    186,500      -                    35,000       -                
60-15 Pump Station 3,100          -                    69,500       -                
60-25 Capital -                -                
60-30 Debt

Sub-Totals 261,515     -                143,400     -                    240,705      -                    118,500     -                

80-01 Admin & Operations 5,200         -                400            -                    5,150          -                    6,400         -                
Sub-Totals 5,200         -                400            -                    5,150          -                    6,400         -                

266,715 - 143,400 - 240,705 - 124,900 - 

FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 8,500         -                
60-05 Plant & Collections 88,000       -                
60-15 Pump Station
60-25 Capital 235,450      -                    100,000     -                
60-30 Debt -                -                    

Sub-Totals 96,500       -                -                -                    235,450      -                    100,000     -                

80-01 Admin & Operations 17,150       -                -                -                    
Sub-Totals 17,150       -                -                -                    -                  -                    

96,500 - - - 235,450 - 100,000 - 

 Budget  Proposed  Budget  Proposed 
FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 478,520     -                60-01 Administration -                -                
60-05 Plant & Collections 309,500     -                60-05 Plant & Collections 1,196,070  -                
60-15 Pump Station 72,600       -                60-15 Pump Station -                -                
60-25 Capital 335,450     -                60-25 Capital -                -                
60-30 Debt -                60-30 Debt -                -                

Sub-Totals 1,196,070 - Sub-Totals 1,196,070 - 

80-01 Admin & Operations 17,150       -                80-01 Admin & Operations 20,000       -                
Sub-Totals 17,150       -                Sub-Totals 20,000       -                

1,213,220 - 1,216,070 - 

 Budget  Proposed 
FY 16  FY 17 

Expenses 1,213,220   -                    

Revenues 1,216,070   -                    

Net Budget (2,850)         -                    

SEABRIGHT HYDRO SEABRIGHT HYDRO

Total Expenses Total Revenues

Department Department

WASTEWATER WASTEWATER

REVENUES

WASTEWATER

SEABRIGHT HYDRO

Total Expenses

APPROPRIATIONS TOTALS

38
Department  Supplies Debt Capital  Capital Reserves 

36

SEABRIGHT HYDRO

Total Expenses

APPROPRIATIONS 34 35

WASTEWATER

WASTEWATER BUDGET and SEABRIGHT HYDRO
Select Board's FY 17 Summary Budget Proposal Compared to FY 16 Budget

APPROPRIATIONS 01 05 31 32
Department  Personnel Services  Employees' Benefits  Contractual Services  Other Contractual 



Town of Camden, Maine

26 Town Manager Comparison 26

FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 261,515     179,200     143,400     62,860          51,105        65,040          14,000       16,740       
60-05 Plant & Collections -                149,390     94,870          186,500      142,000        35,000       36,800       
60-15 Pump Station 3,100          3,000            69,500       67,000       
60-25 Capital -                -                
60-30 Debt

Sub-Totals 261,515     328,590     143,400     157,730        240,705      210,040        118,500     120,540     

80-01 Admin & Operations 5,200         5,200         400            870               5,150          1,900            6,400         26,030       
Sub-Totals 5,200         5,200         400            870               5,150          1,900            6,400         26,030       

266,715 328,590 143,400 157,730 240,705 210,040 124,900 146,570 

FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 8,500         13,650       
60-05 Plant & Collections 88,000       91,000       
60-15 Pump Station
60-25 Capital 235,450      61,350          100,000     100,000     
60-30 Debt -                188,985        

Sub-Totals 96,500       104,650     -                188,985        235,450      61,350          100,000     100,000     

80-01 Admin & Operations 17,150       37,500       -                3,500            
Sub-Totals 17,150       37,500       -                3,500            -                  -                    

96,500 104,650 - 192,485 235,450 61,350 100,000 100,000 

 Budget  Proposed  Budget  Proposed 
FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 478,520     337,490     60-01 Administration -                -                
60-05 Plant & Collections 309,500     514,060     60-05 Plant & Collections 1,196,070  1,145,000  
60-15 Pump Station 72,600       70,000       60-15 Pump Station -                -                
60-25 Capital 335,450     161,350     60-25 Capital -                -                
60-30 Debt 188,985     60-30 Debt -                127,380     

Sub-Totals 1,196,070 1,271,885 Sub-Totals 1,196,070 1,272,380 

80-01 Admin & Operations 17,150       37,500       80-01 Admin & Operations 20,000       37,500       
Sub-Totals 17,150       37,500       Sub-Totals 20,000       37,500       

1,213,220 1,309,384 1,216,070 1,309,879 

 Budget  Proposed 
FY 16  FY 17 

Expenses 1,213,220   1,309,384     

Revenues 1,216,070   1,309,879     

Net Budget (2,850)         (495)              

SEABRIGHT HYDRO SEABRIGHT HYDRO

Total Expenses Total Revenues

Department Department

WASTEWATER WASTEWATER

REVENUES

WASTEWATER

SEABRIGHT HYDRO

Total Expenses

APPROPRIATIONS TOTALS

38
Department  Supplies Debt Capital  Capital Reserves 

36

SEABRIGHT HYDRO

Total Expenses

APPROPRIATIONS 34 35

WASTEWATER

WASTEWATER BUDGET and SEABRIGHT HYDRO
Town Manager's FY 17 Summary Budget Proposal Compared to FY 16 Budget

APPROPRIATIONS 01 05 31 32
Department  Personnel Services  Employees' Benefits  Contractual Services  Other Contractual 



Town of Camden, Maine

27 Dept Hd Budget Comparison 27

FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 261,515     316,480     143,400     62,860          51,105        65,040          14,000       16,740       
60-05 Plant & Collections 186,500      176,500        35,000       36,800       
60-15 Pump Station 3,100          3,000            69,500       67,000       
60-25 Capital -                -                
60-30 Debt

Sub-Totals 261,515     316,480     143,400     62,860          240,705      244,540        118,500     120,540     

80-01 Admin & Operations 5,200         5,200         400            870               5,150          1,900            6,400         26,030       
Sub-Totals 5,200         5,200         400            870               5,150          1,900            6,400         26,030       

266,715 316,480 143,400 62,860 240,705 244,540 124,900 146,570 

FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 8,500         13,650       
60-05 Plant & Collections 88,000       91,000       
60-15 Pump Station
60-25 Capital 235,450      84,350          100,000     100,000     
60-30 Debt -                188,985        

Sub-Totals 96,500       104,650     -                188,985        235,450      84,350          100,000     100,000     

80-01 Admin & Operations 17,150       4,000         
Sub-Totals 17,150       4,000         -                -                    -                  -                    

96,500 104,650 - 188,985 235,450 84,350 100,000 100,000 

 Budget  Proposed  Budget  Proposed 
FY 16  FY 17 FY 16  FY 17 

60-01 Administration 478,520     474,770     60-01 Administration -                -                
60-05 Plant & Collections 309,500     304,300     60-05 Plant & Collections 1,196,070  1,365,300  
60-15 Pump Station 72,600       70,000       60-15 Pump Station -                -                
60-25 Capital 335,450     184,350     60-25 Capital -                -                
60-30 Debt 188,985     60-30 Debt -                127,380     

Sub-Totals 1,196,070 1,222,405 Sub-Totals 1,196,070 1,492,680 

80-01 Admin & Operations 17,150       38,000       80-01 Admin & Operations 20,000       12,000       
Sub-Totals 17,150       38,000       Sub-Totals 20,000       12,000       

1,213,220 1,260,404 1,216,070 1,504,680 

 Budget  Proposed 
FY 16  FY 17 

Expenses 1,213,220   1,260,404     

Revenues 1,216,070   1,504,680     

Net Budget (2,850)         (244,275)       

Total Expenses

TOTALS

SEABRIGHT HYDRO

WASTEWATER

Debt

Total Revenues

REVENUES
Department

SEABRIGHT HYDRO SEABRIGHT HYDRO

WASTEWATER WASTEWATER

Department

Total Expenses

APPROPRIATIONS
Department

34
 Supplies 

APPROPRIATIONS 38
 Capital Reserves Capital

3635

WASTEWATER BUDGET and SEABRIGHT HYDRO
Department Head's FY 17 Summary Budget Proposal Compared to FY 16 Budget

Total Expenses

31APPROPRIATIONS
Department  Personnel Services  Employees' Benefits 

01 05
 Contractual Services 

32
 Other Contractual 

WASTEWATER

SEABRIGHT HYDRO



Town of Camden, Maine

28 Proposal WW 28

60-01 60-05 60-15 60-25 60-30

Administration Plant & 
Collections Pump Station Capital 

Improvements Debt TOTALS

01 Personnel Services 316,480              149,390           465,870                   
05 Employee's Benefits 62,860                94,870             157,730                   
31 Contractual Services 65,040                176,500           3,000               244,540                   
32 Other Contractual Services 16,740                36,800             67,000             120,540                   
34 Supplies 13,650                91,000             -                      104,650                   
35 Debt 188,985               188,985                   
36 Capital 184,350             184,350                   

Total Expenses 474,770              548,560           70,000             184,350             188,985               1,466,665                

91-24 91-21 60-30
Administration O&M Debt TOTALS

Totals by Department -                          1,365,300        -                      127,380               1,492,680                
Total Revenues -                          1,365,300        -                      127,380               1,492,680                

NET BUDGET 474,770              (816,740)         70,000             61,605                 (26,015)                   

60-01 60-05 60-15 60-25 60-30

Administration Plant & 
Collections Pump Station Capital 

Improvements Debt TOTALS

01 Personnel Services 179,200              149,390           328,590                   
05 Employee's Benefits 62,860                94,870             157,730                   
31 Contractual Services 65,040                142,000           3,000               210,040                   
32 Other Contractual Services 16,740                36,800             67,000             120,540                   
34 Supplies 13,650                91,000             -                      104,650                   
35 Debt 188,985               188,985                   
36 Capital  161,350             161,350                   

Total Expenses 337,490              514,060           70,000             161,350             188,985               1,271,885                

-13.28%

91-24 91-21 60-30
Administration O&M Debt TOTALS

Totals by Department -                          1,145,000        -                      127,380               1,272,380                
Total Revenues -                          1,145,000        -                      127,380               1,272,380                

-14.76%

NET BUDGET 337,490              (630,940)         70,000             61,605                 (495)                        

Percentage Change from Department Heads' Proposal -98.10%

Departments

Categories

REVENUES
Departments

APPROPRIATIONS

APPROPRIATIONS

Manager's Proposal - FY 17

Departments

Categories

WASTEWATER BUDGET
Departmental Proposal - FY 17

Departments
REVENUES



Town of Camden, Maine

29 Proposal WW 29

60-01 60-05 60-15 60-25 60-30

Administration Plant & 
Collections Pump Station Capital 

Improvements Debt TOTALS

01 Personnel Services -                          -                      -                              
05 Employee's Benefits -                          -                      -                              
31 Contractual Services -                          -                      -                      -                              
32 Other Contractual Services -                          -                      -                      -                              
34 Supplies -                          -                      -                      -                              
35 Debt -                          -                              
36 Capital  -                        -                              

Total Expenses -                          -                      -                      -                          -                              

91-24 91-21 60-30
Administration O&M Debt TOTALS

Totals by Department -                          -                      -                      -                          -                              
Total Revenues -                          -                      -                              

NET BUDGET -                          -                      -                      -                          -                              

Percentage Change from Department Heads' Proposal

Select Board's Proposal - FY 17

APPROPRIATIONS
Departments

Categories

REVENUES
Departments



30 30

nothing



Town of Camden, Maine

31 Proposals Seabright 31

Department 
Head Town Manager Select Board
80-01 80-02 80-02

Admin & 
Operations

Admin & 
Operations

Admin & 
Operations

01 Personnel Services 5,200                   5,200                   -                           
05 Employee's Benefits 870                      870                      -                           
31 Contractual Services 1,900                   1,900                   -                           
32 Other Contractual Services 26,030                 26,030                 -                           
36 Capital Outlay 4,000                   3,500                   -                           

Total Expenses 38,000                 37,500                 -                           

Department 
Head Town Manager Select Board
80-01 80-02 80-02

Admin & 
Operations

Admin & 
Operations

Admin & 
Operations

Totals by Department 12,000                 37,500                 -                           
Total Revenues 12,000                 37,500                 -                           

26,000                 -                           -                           
NET SEABRIGHT HYDRO 

BUDGET

SEABRIGHT HYDRO BUDGET
FY 17

APPROPRIATIONS

Categories

REVENUES



32 32

nothing





blank



Town of Camden, Maine

35 60-01 Admin SUMMARY 35

Fund 2, Department 60-01 - Wastewater Administration

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Personnel Services 231,484         259,742         271,218         261,515         272,609         316,480         21.0% 179,200         -                       
05 Employees' Benefits 117,148         129,033         137,174         143,400         147,516         62,860           -56.2% 62,860           -56.2% -                       
31 Contractual Services 42,450           42,158           43,796           51,105           41,912           65,040           27.3% 65,040           27.3% -                       
32 Other Contractual Services 6,329              5,070              12,849           14,000           9,983              16,740           19.6% 16,740           19.6% -                       
34 Supplies 6,850              6,735              10,360           8,500              4,954              13,650           60.6% 13,650           60.6% -                       

404,262       442,737       475,397       478,520       476,973       474,770       -0.8% 337,490       -29.5% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 404,262       442,737       475,397       478,520       476,973       474,770       -0.8% 337,490       -29.5% -                      
38,475              32,659              3,123                (1,547)               (3,750)               (141,030)          

9.52% 7.38% 0.66% Under Budget -0.78% -29.47%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Revenue 110                 50                    95                    -                       80                    -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL REVENUE 110                50                   95                   -                      80                   -                      -                      -                      
(60)                  45                    (95)                  80                      

Exceed Estimate

NET BUDGET 404,152       442,687       475,302       478,520       476,893       474,770       -0.8% 337,490       -29.5% -                      

38,535              32,614              3,218                Under Budget (3,750)               (141,030)          
9.53% 7.37% 0.68% -0.78% -29.47%

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

SUMMARY

Account 91-21
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16

Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Department 60-01
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16

Staffing includs a Superintendent, an Assistant Superintendent, and a Civil Engineer.

Department Outline

The purposes of the Wastewater Administration is to manage the overall maintenance and upkeep of the wastewater facility; to maintain the facility in a safe environment; and 
to look to the future to prepare for upgrades to this valuable infrastructure system.

The Town of Camden Wastewater Department is dedicated to protecting the water environment, and the citizens and visitors of the Town that enjoy recreational and 
commercial use of Camden Harbor.

Staffing

Mission

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

 $450,000

 $500,000

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 FY 17 FY 17

Actual Actual Actual Budget Dept Head
Proposed

Manager's
Proposed

Select Board
Approved

Wastewater Administrative Budget

Appropriations Revenues



36 36

nothing



Town of Camden, Maine

37 60-01 Administration 37

Fund 2, Department 60-01 - Wastewater Administration

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Personnel Services
01 01 Full-time Salaries 224,420         252,634         262,445         252,515         262,847         176,700         -30.0% 176,700         
10 10 Overtime 4,564              4,608              6,273              6,500              7,262              -                       -                       
39 39 Sewer Commissioners 2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              2,500              0.0% 2,500              

231,484       259,742       271,218       261,515       272,609       179,200       -31.5% 179,200       -31.5% -                      
05 Employees' Benefits

05 01 01 FICA 17,812           19,532           20,854           19,800           20,941           8,630              -56.4% 8,630              -56.4%

02 Medicare 16,589           -                       19,197           2,020              2,020              
12 05 03 Clothing Allowance 1,250              1,250              1,250              1,500              1,250              750                 -50.0% 750                 -50.0%

15 20 04 Cell Phone Stipend -                       -                       1,360              1,360              
05 06 MPERS 10,418           13,262           22,200           -                       7,290              -67.2% 7,290              -67.2%

05 10 10 Medical Insurance 80,199           87,231           89,859           89,800           103,198         40,940           -54.4% 40,940           -54.4%

25 09 19 Unemployment 936                 900                 924                 1,500              -                       870                 -42.0% 870                 -42.0%

25 10 20 Workers Compensation 6,533              6,858              7,697              8,600              2,930              1,000              -88.4% 1,000              -88.4%

117,148       129,033       137,174       143,400       147,516       62,860          -56.2% 62,860          -56.2% -                      
31 Contractual Services
21 Advertising/Marketing 500                 500                 
23 Contingency 1,000              1,000              

10 05 25 Dues & Memberships 980                 966                 1,500              3,700              146.7% 3,700              146.7%

12 02 34 Professional Development 1,203              1,030              2,225              2,500              2,742              3,000              20.0% 3,000              20.0%

25 01& 03 45 General Liability-Bldgs & Contents 2,900              3,145              3,311              4,900              2,152              7,400              51.0% 7,400              51.0%

25 04 46 Bond 149                 165                 206                 250                 206                 300                 20.0% 300                 20.0%

25 06 47 Public Officials Liability 757                 729                 -                       700                 -                       750                 7.1% 750                 7.1%

25 02 48 Auto Insurance 2,471              2,850              3,047              3,300              2,967              3,500              6.1% 3,500              6.1%

30 25 66 Audit 2,100              2,100              2,100              2,100              2,100              2,100              0.0% 2,100              0.0%

70 Engineering Fees 5,000              5,000              
30 01 73 Legal Fees -                       -                       -                       1,500              -                       1,500              0.0% 1,500              0.0%

30 21 77 Drug Testing, Fitness Evaluation -                       115                 230                 230                 -                       230                 0.0% 230                 0.0%

30 63 78 Billing Service/Misc. Prof Srvcs 30,409           31,058           32,676           31,125           31,743           32,060           3.0% 32,060           3.0%

30 28 80 GIS Updates 1,481              -                       -                       3,000              -                       4,000              33.3% 4,000              33.3%

42,450          42,158          43,796          51,105          41,912          65,040          27.3% 65,040          27.3% -                      
32 Other Contractual Services

30 41 35 Information Technology 2,408              520                 7,103              7,500              1,635              11,000           46.7% 11,000           46.7%

20 05 64 Vehicles Repairs & Maintenance 2,209              3,314              2,282              3,000              4,483              3,000              0.0% 3,000              0.0%

65 Auto Mileage Reimbursement 300                 300                 
15 20 76 Telephones, Cell Phones 1,712              1,236              3,464              3,500              3,865              2,440              -30.3% 2,440              -30.3%

6,329             5,070             12,849          14,000          9,983             16,740          19.6% 16,740          19.6% -                       
34 Supplies

10 05 01 Publications 1,582              932                 1,000              1,000              
10 13 07 Safety Equipment 3,425              1,416              4,976              3,000              1,574              3,000              0.0% 3,000              0.0%

31 Computer Supplies 500                 500                 
37 Office Supplies 500                 500                 
38 Postate, Postage Meter Supplies 150                 150                 
55 Automotive/Vehicle Supplies 3,000              3,000              

10 14 95 Gasoline 5,319              3,802              5,500              2,448              1,250              -77.3% 1,250              -77.3%

96 Diesel 3,425              -                       750                 750                 
97 Oil -                       3,500              3,500              

6,850             6,735             10,360          8,500             4,954             13,650          60.6% 13,650          60.6% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 404,262       442,737       475,397       478,520       476,973       337,490       -29.5% 337,490       -29.5% -                      
38,475              32,659              3,123                (1,547)               (141,030)          (141,030)          

9.52% 7.38% 0.66% Under Budget -29.47% -29.47%

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16

Department 60-01

Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

Update GIS 
Program



Town of Camden, Maine

38 60-01 Administration 38

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

15 REVENUE
15 15 Miscellaneous Income 60                    20                    
16 16 Drain Layers License 50                    50                    95                    60                    

110                50                   95                   -                      80                   -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL REVENUE 110                50                   95                   -                      80                   -                      -                      -                      
(60)                  45                    (95)                  80                      

Exceed Estimate

NET BUDGET 404,152       442,687       475,302       478,520       476,893       337,490       -29.5% 337,490       -29.5% -                      

38,535              32,614              3,218                Under Budget (141,030)          (141,030)          
9.53% 7.37% 0.68% -29.47% -29.47%

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16

Account 91-24

Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17



Town of Camden, Maine

39 60-05 Sewer Plant O&M SUMMARY 39

Fund 2, Department 60-05 - Sewer Plant and  Collections Operations & Maintenance

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Personnel Services 149,390         149,390         
05 Employees' Benefits 94,870           94,870           
31 Contractual Services 102,168         92,223           68,332           88,000           82,532           91,000           3.4% 91,000           3.4% -                       
32 Other Contractual Services 101,403         105,299         119,066         186,500         164,757         176,500         -5.4% 142,000         -23.9% -                       
34 Supplies 32,473           29,018           33,155           35,000           25,187           36,800           5.1% 36,800           5.1% -                       

236,044       226,539       220,553       309,500       272,476       548,560       77.2% 514,060       66.1% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 236,044       226,539       220,553       309,500       272,476       548,560       77.2% 514,060       66.1% -                      
(9,505)               (5,986)               88,947              (37,024)            239,060           204,560           

-4.03% -2.64% 40.33% Under Budget 77.24% 66.09%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 01 Revenue 819,910         864,295         860,502         1,196,070     1,105,141     1,365,300     0.0% 1,145,000     0.0% -                       

TOTAL REVENUE 819,910       864,295       860,502       1,196,070    1,105,141    1,365,300    14.1% 1,145,000    -                      
44,385           (3,794)            335,568         (90,929)            169,230         (51,070)          

Under Estimate

NET BUDGET (583,866)     (637,756)     (639,949)     (886,570)     (832,665)     (816,740)     -7.9% (630,940)     -28.8% -                      

(53,890)            (2,193)               (246,621)          Over Budget 69,830              255,630           
9.23% 0.34% 38.54% -7.88% -28.83%

R 91-21
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

SUMMARY
Department 60-05

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Department Outline

Funding for the Sewer Plant and Collections Operations & Maintenance includes money to maintain, repair, and keep the Sewer Plant running and in good working order.  These 
are normal maintenance costs, including the cost of personnel to maintain the system.

Staffing
Staffing includes an Equipment Mechanic, a Utility Operator, and a Press Operator & Assistant Mechanic, all supervised by the Superintendent and his 
management team.

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 FY 17 FY 17

Actual Actual Actual Budget Dept Head
Proposed

Manager's
Proposed

Select Board
Approved

Wastewater Operations & Maintenance Budget

Appropriations Revenues



Town of Camden, Maine

40 60-05 Sewer Plant O&M 40

Fund 2, Department 60-05 - Sewer Plant and Collections Operations & Maintenance

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Personnel Services
01 01 Full-time Salaries 137,290         137,290         
10 10 Overtime 6,500              6,500              

55 Part-time Employee (2 months) 5,600              5,600              
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      149,390       149,390       -                      

05 Employees' Benefits
05 01 01 FICA 9,590              9,590              

02 Medicare 2,250              2,250              
12 05 03 Clothing Allowance 1,000              1,000              
15 20 04 Cell Phone Stipend 480                 480                 
05 06 MPERS 13,670           13,670           
05 10 10 Medical Insurance 58,910           58,910           
25 09 19 Unemployment 970                 970                 
25 10 20 Workers Compensation 8,000              8,000              

-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      94,870          94,870          -                      
31 Contractual Services

30 29 27 Laboratory Services 8,775              2,901              3,775              8,000              6,001              8,000              0.0% 8,000              0.0%

38 Sludge Removal 93,393           89,322           64,557           80,000           76,531           80,000           0.0% 80,000           0.0%

60 Inspections, Discharge Fees 3,000              3,000              
102,168       92,223          68,332          88,000          82,532          91,000          3.4% 91,000          3.4% -                      

32 Other Contractual Services
20 62 33 Plant Repairs & Maintenance 30,537           37,537           44,470           50,000           36,204           40,000           -20.0% 40,000           -20.0%

 10-20 61 38 Collection System Maintenance 25,057           15,500           25,722           80,000           80,967           80,000           0.0% 45,000           -43.8%

30 30 45 Mowing 5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              5,000              0.0% 5,000              0.0%

15 01 70 Electricity 39,717           45,356           42,233           50,000           41,198           50,000           0.0% 50,000           0.0%

15 10 75 Sewer 1,092              1,906              1,641              1,500              1,388              1,000              -33.3% 1,500              0.0%

15 10 77 Water 500                 500                 
101,403       105,299       119,066       186,500       164,757       176,500       142,000       -23.9% -                       

34 Supplies
15 05 25 Heating Fuel 6,440              7,384              7,586              8,000              4,417              8,000              0.0% 8,000              0.0%

27 Office Supplies 300                 300                 
10 61 57 Chemicals 26,033           21,633           25,569           27,000           20,770           27,000           27,000           0.0%

58 Cleaning, Disinfecting Supplies 500                 500                 
62 General Maintenance Supplies 1,000              1,000              

32,473          29,018          33,155          35,000          25,187          36,800          5.1% 36,800          5.1% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 236,044       226,539       220,553       309,500       272,476       548,560       77.2% 514,060       66.1% -                      
(9,505)               (5,986)               88,947              (37,024)            239,060           204,560           

-4.03% -2.64% 40.33% Under Budget 77.24% 66.09%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 REVENUE
01 01 Billed Accounts 819,910         864,295         860,502         1,196,070     1,105,141     1,365,300     14.1% 1,145,000     -4.3%

819,910       864,295       860,502       1,196,070    1,105,141    1,365,300    1,145,000    -                      

TOTAL REVENUE 819,910       864,295       860,502       1,196,070    1,105,141    1,365,300    1,145,000    -                      
44,385           (3,794)            335,568         (90,929)            169,230         (51,070)          

Under Estimate

NET BUDGET (583,866)     (637,756)     (639,949)     (886,570)     (832,665)     (816,740)     (630,940)     -28.8% -                      

(53,890)            (2,193)               (246,621)          Over Budget 69,830              255,630           
9.23% 0.34% 38.54% -7.88% -28.83%

Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

R 91-21
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Department 60-05
Department Head

Town Manager



Town of Camden, Maine

41 60-15 WW Pump Station SUMMARY 41

Fund 2, Department 60-15 - Wastewater Pump Station O&M

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

31 Contractual Services 1,956              1,956              2,000              3,100              2,796              3,000              -3.2% 3,000              -3.2% -                       
32 Other Contractual Services 41,577           38,407           48,854           69,500           54,107           67,000           -3.6% 67,000           -3.6% -                       

43,533          40,363          50,854          72,600          56,903          70,000          -3.6% 70,000          -3.6% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 43,533          40,363          50,854          72,600          56,903          70,000          -3.6% 70,000          -3.6% -                      
(3,170)               10,492              21,746              (15,697)            (2,600)               (2,600)               

-7.28% 25.99% 42.76% Under Budget -3.58% -3.58%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL REVENUE -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                         

Under Estimate

NET BUDGET 43,533          40,363          50,854          72,600          56,903          70,000          -3.6% 70,000          -3.6% -                      

(3,170)               10,492              21,746              Under Budget (2,600)               (2,600)               
-7.28% 25.99% 42.76% -3.58% -3.58%

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

SUMMARY
Department 60-15

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Department Outline

Funding for the Watewater Pump Station Operations & Maintenance keeps the seven (7) pump stations operational and maintained.

 $-

 $10,000

 $20,000

 $30,000

 $40,000

 $50,000

 $60,000

 $70,000

 $80,000

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 FY 17 FY 17

Actual Actual Actual Budget Dept Head
Proposed

Manager's
Proposed

Select Board
Approved

Wastewater Pump Station Budget

Appropriations Revenues



Town of Camden, Maine

42 60-15 WW Pump Station O&M 42

Fund 2, Department 60-15 - Wastewater Pump Station O&M

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

31 Contractual Services
30 35 56 Security Services 1,956              1,956              2,000              3,100              2,796              3,000              -3.2% 3,000              -3.2%

1,956             1,956             2,000             3,100             2,796             3,000             -3.2% 3,000             -3.2% -                      
32 Other Contractual Services

20 17 33 Pump Station Maintenance 7,869          1,906              5,000              18,000           12,036           20,000           11.1% 20,000           11.1%

15 01 70 Electricity 32,386           35,123           42,097           50,000           40,637           45,000           -10.0% 45,000           -10.0%

15 10 75 Sewer 1,321              1,378              1,758              1,500              1,433              1,300              -13.3% 1,300              -13.3%

77 Water 700                 700                 #DIV/0!

41,577          38,407          48,854          69,500          54,107          67,000          -3.6% 67,000          -3.6% -                       

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 43,533          40,363          50,854          72,600          56,903          70,000          -6.8% 70,000          -                      
(3,170)               10,492              21,746              (15,697)            (2,600)               (2,600)               

-7.28% 25.99% 42.76% Under Budget -3.58% -3.58%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 REVENUE

-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL REVENUE -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                         

NET BUDGET 43,533          40,363          50,854          72,600          56,903          70,000          -3.6% 70,000          -3.6% -                      

(3,170)               10,492              21,746              (2,600)               (2,600)               
-7.28% 25.99% 42.76% -3.58% -3.58%

Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Department Head
Town Manager

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Department 60-15
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17





Capital Improvement Plan



Town of Camden, Maine

45 CIP 45

The purpose of the CIP is to systematically identify, plan, schedule, 
finance, track and monitor capital infrastructure and assets to ensure cost-
effectiveness as well as conformance to polices.  The policies require the 

Town to operate and maintain its infrastructure and assets in a manner 
that protects the public investment and ensures achievement of their 

maximum useful life.

Capital Infrastructure items cost more than $50,000 and have a useful 
(depreciable life) of five years or more.  Generally, Capital Infrastructure 

is any expenditure for physical improvements, including costs for: 
acquisition of existing buildings, land, or interests in land; construction 

of new buildings or other structures, including additions and major 
alterations; construction of streets, highway, sidewalks, parking lots, or 

utilities; acquisition of fixed equipment; landscaping; and similar 
expenditures. It may mean any change, alteration, rearrangement or 

addition to existing facilities. It is also new construction, acquisition or 
improvements to sites, parking lots, buildings, or service systems.  

A Capital Asset has a value of more than $5,000, either individually, or 
collectively, and has an estimated useful life of more than one year. 

Capital Assets may include, but are not limited to computer equipment, 
office furniture, fiber optics, fleet vehicles, public works vehicles and 

machinery, and emergency response vehicles, to name a few.



Capital Improvement Plan



Town of Camden, Maine

47 60-25 -CIP SUMMARY 47

Fund 2, Department 60-25 - Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD 

Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

36 Capital Outlay (less than $50,000) 64,706           84,470           121,430         235,450         250,289         84,350           -64.2% 61,350           -73.9% -                       
38 Capital Reserves 30,000           129,850         76,865           100,000         60,000           100,000         100,000         -                       

94,706          214,320       198,295       335,450       310,289       184,350       -45.0% 161,350       -51.9% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 94,706          214,320       198,295       335,450       310,289       184,350       -45.0% 161,350       -51.9% -                      
119,613           (16,025)            137,155           (25,161)            (151,100)          (174,100)          

Under Budget -45.04% -51.90%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL REVENUE -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                         

Under Estimate

NET BUDGET 94,706          214,320       198,295       335,450       310,289       184,350       -45.0% 161,350       -51.9% -                      

119,613           (16,025)            137,155           Under Budget (151,100)          (174,100)          
-45.04% -51.90%

Account 92-01
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Capital Improvements

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

SUMMARY
Department 60-25

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS APPROVED
FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

The Wastewater CIP includes infrastructure improvements, equipment purchases (large and small), as well as annual contributions to capital reserve 
accounts.

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 FY 17 FY 17

Actual Actual Actual Budget Dept Head
Proposed

Manager's
Proposed

Select Board
Approved

Wastewater CIP Budget

Appropriations Revenues



Town of Camden, Maine

48 60-25 - CIP 48

Fund 2, Department 60-25 - Wastewater Capital Improvements

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line

New 
Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

36 Capital Outlay (less than $50,000)

62 67 20 Treatment Plant Equipment 1,208          31,943           191,000         219,421         
30 Mechanic St Engineering 5,000              -                       

63 66 30 Inflow & Infiltration Study 232             21,148           15,118           30,000           27,683           45,000           50.0% 45,000           50.0%

61 66 31 Computers 3,500              3,500              
32 Evaluation 7,850              7,850              

64 69 54 Pump Station Upgrades 48,816       16,929           91,861           
68 Bakery Bridge 761                 

 25-63 67 91 Jetter Lease Payment 14,450       14,450           14,450           14,450           2,424              
62 67 91 Service Van Replacement 23,000           5,000              

64,706      84,470          121,430       235,450       250,289       84,350          61,350          -                      
38 Capital Reserves

56-63 64 50 Intown Sewer Reserve 177,350         40,000           -                       
63 63 51 I&I Collection Reserve 89,850           20,000           20,000           20,000           20,000           0.0% 20,000           0.0%

63 64 52 Collection System Reserve 40,000           40,000           20,000           40,000           0.0% 40,000           0.0%

62 62 62 Treatment Plant Equip. Reserve 30,000       20,000           20,000           20,000           0.0% 20,000           0.0%

64 65 65 Pump Station Reserve/Upgrades -                   20,000           16,865           20,000           20,000           20,000           20,000           0.0%

30,000      129,850       76,865          100,000       60,000          100,000       0.0% 100,000       0.0% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 94,706      214,320       198,295       335,450       310,289       184,350       -45.0% 161,350       -51.9% -                      
119,613           (16,025)            137,155           (25,161)            (151,100)          (174,100)          

Under Budget -45.04% -51.90%

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line

New 
Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 REVENUE

-                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL REVENUE -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                         

NET BUDGET 94,706      214,320       198,295       335,450       310,289       184,350       -45.0% 161,350       -51.9% -                      

119,613           (16,025)            137,155           (151,100)          (174,100)          

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Department 60-25
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17



Camden Wastewater Dept. Capital Improvement Plan Revised 06/2/2016

49 Cap Imprvmnt Plan 49

Tax Supported Capital Expenses Priority 
(1 to 5)

Estimate of 
Cost. FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 Notes

Treatment Plant
Phase 2 upgrade 1 X X Could include all of the items listed below

Aeration tanks gates and railings 1 X X WP to evaluate
Secondary clarifier polymer feed system 1 X X WP to evaluate
Secondary clarifier cover 1 X X WP to evaluate
Belt press replacement 1 X X WP to evaluate
SCADA 1 X X WP to evaluate
Plunger pumps replacement (2) 1 X X WP to evaluate
Emergency Generator 1 X X WP to evaluate
Return Bldg Pump replacement 1 X X WP to evaluate
Blower building ventilation fan 1 X X WP to evaluate
Hydro System Upgrade (pumps, controls) 1 X X WP to evaluate
Replace (1) aeration blower 1 X X WP to evaluate
Plant concrete repair 1 X X WP to evaluate

Pump Stations
Washington St. PS Upgrade 1 370,000 X X 370,000 WP estimate
Cove Rd. PS Upgrade 1 298,500 X X 298,500 WP estimate
Laite Beach PS Upgrade 1 56,000 X X 56,000 WP estimate
Pump station engineering/contingency 1 289,000 X X 289,000 WP estimate

Collection System
John St. Sewer Ext. (option B) 3 405,475
Cobb Road Ext. 5 200,000
Molyneaux Rd. (Riverside to Rt. 52) 5 500,000
Upper Mountain St. 5 350,000
Upper Washington St. 5 250,000
Beaucaire Ave. 5 1,750,000
Spruce Street 1 47,167 47,167 Completed in FY2016
Cedar Street 5 30,000
Mechanic Street 1 100,000 5,000 Inspect the pipe again in FY2016, develop plan FY2017

Bond Payments
Bayview Pump Station Upgrade Last payment due FY14
Treatment Plant Upgrade 68,745 68,745 68,745 68,745 68,745 68,745 Pmts. to be offset by cost share from Rockport
Rawson Avenue Pump Station 54,153 51,975 51,513 51,513 51,513 51,513 Pmts. to be offset by cost share from Rockport

Subtotal 4,646,142 170,065 125,720 1,133,758 120,258



Camden Wastewater Dept. Capital Improvement Plan Revised 06/2/2016

50 Cap Imprvmnt Plan 50

Expenses Covered by Operations 
& Maintenance Budget

Priority 
(1 to 5)

Estimate of 
Cost. FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21

Press Bldg Roof replacement 1 18,000 23,280 Completed in FY2016
Plant upgrade evaluation 1 80,000 75,000 Completed in FY2016
Driveway paving repair 1 20,000 20,000 Completed in FY2016
CCTV inspection equipment 1 79,000 79,000 Replaced in FY2016
GPS meter 1 12,000 12,000 Purchased in FY2016

TP Reserve - WW Equipment 20,000 20,000
WW Pump Station Reserve 20,000 20,000
I & I Reserve 20,000 20,000
Collection System Sewer Reserve 40,000 40,000

Vehicles
3/4 Ton Pick-up w/plow (2006) 1 30,000 30,000 Replaced in FY2016
1/2 Ton Ext. Cab Pick-up (2011) 5 30,000 30,000
Service Van (1997) 2 23,000 23,000
Hi-Vel Sewer Flushing Machine (1973) 1 14,450 Paid off in FY2016
Camera Van (1991) 5 30,000

Subtotal 322,000 353,730 123,000 0 0 0 30,000

Total 4,968,142 523,795 248,720 1,133,758





This page intentionally left blank.



Town of Camden, Maine

53 60-30 WW Debt Summary 53

Fund 2, Department 60-30 - Debt

#REF!
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD 

Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

38 Debt 188,985         188,985         -                       
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      188,985       188,985       -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      188,985       188,985       -                      
-                         -                         -                         -                         188,985           188,985           

01/00/00
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       127,380         127,380         -                       

TOTAL REVENUE -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      127,380       127,380       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                         127,380         127,380         

NET BUDGET -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      61,605          61,605          -                      

-                         -                         -                         

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

The Wastewater Debt consists of bonds taken for infrastructure improvements.  Previously, Wastewater debt was absorbed through the Town's general fund 
budget.  However, it is more appropriate for users of the service to pay for its debt.  The Town will continue to support the Wastewater debt until such time 
as the debt can be easily transferred to the Wastewater budget.

Account 
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Capital Improvements

SUMMARY
Department 60-30

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS APPROVED



Town of Camden, Maine

54 60-30 WW Debt 54

Fund 2, Department 60-30 - Wastewater Debt

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line

New 
Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 PRINCIPAL
01 Bond Principal 47,250           47,250           47,250           
10 MMBB Principal 104,485         104,485         

-                      -                      -                      -                      47,250          151,735       151,735       -                      
02 INTEREST

20 Bond Interest 22,391           22,395           22,395           
25 MMBB Interest 14,855           14,855           

-                      -                      -                      -                      69,641          37,250          37,250          -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 188,985       188,985       -                      
188,985           188,985           

06/30/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line

New 
Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 REVENUE
Town General Fund Budget Support 113,620         113,620         
Town of Rockport Support 13,760           13,760           

-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      127,380       127,380       -                      

TOTAL REVENUE -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      127,380       127,380       -                      
-                       -                       -                       -                         127,380         127,380         

NET BUDGET -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      61,605          61,605          -                      

-                         -                         -                         61,605              61,605              

12/1/2016 12/1/2040
Wastewater Share 35% 892,500         306,932         1,199,432     

WW Treatment Plant 10/1/2007 4/1/2022 885,000         145,482         1,030,482     
Maine Muncipal Bond Bank 2010SR Rawson Avenue Upgrade 1/15/2011 7/15/2025 660,000         54,802           714,802         

47,250           22,391           69,641           
WW Treatment Plant 60,482           8,263              68,745           

Maine Muncipal Bond Bank 2010SR Rawson Avenue Upgrade 44,000           6,589              50,589           
TOTALS 151,732       37,245          188,977       

Roosevelt & Cross Town and 
Wastewater  Pump Staton Bond 

Maine Muncipal Bond Bank 2007FS

CURRENT SEWER DEBT PAYMENTS

Lending Institution Department Purpose  Dates 
 Final 

Payment 
Date 

 Principal  Interest; 
Other Fees  Total 

Maine Muncipal Bond Bank 2007FS

Proposed FY 17 FY 17

SEWER LONG-TERM DEBT
 Final 

Payment 
Date 

 Origination 
Date 

 Original 
Amount 

 Interest; 
Other Fees  Total Department PurposeLending Institution

Town and 
Wastewater

Roosevelt & Cross
 Pump Station Bond 

Department Head
Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

.
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17



The operations of the Seabright Dam are included in the 
Wastewater budget simply because it is managed by the 

Wastewater Superintendent.  Funding for the administration and 
operations is reimbursed by the Town.



This page intentionally left blank.



Town of Camden, Maine

57 80-01 Admin & Operations SUMMRY 57

Fund 9, Department 80-01- Seabright Administration & Operations

06/13/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Personnel Services 5,750              5,320              4,300              5,200              5,100              5,200              0.0% 5,200              -                       
05 Employees' Benefits 398                 398                 329                 400                 390                 870                 117.5% 870                 117.5% -                       
31 Contractual Services 15,162           4,183              3,262              5,150              3,704              1,900              -63.1% 1,900              -63.1% -                       
32 Other Contractual Services 1,112              7,236              2,766              6,400              1,929              26,030           306.7% 26,030           306.7% -                       
36 Capital Outlay -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       4,000              3,500              -                       

22,422          17,137          10,657          17,150          11,123          38,000          121.6% 37,500          118.7% -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 22,422          17,137          10,657          17,150          11,123          38,000          121.6% 37,500          118.7% -                      
(5,285)               (6,480)               6,493                (6,027)               20,850              20,350              
-23.57% -37.81% 60.93% Under Budget 121.57% 118.66%

06/13/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Revenue 25,223           20,440           19,194           20,000           9,676              12,000           -40.0% 37,500           87.5% -                       

TOTAL REVENUE 25,223          20,440          19,194          20,000          9,676             12,000          -40.0% 37,500          87.5% -                      
(4,783)            (1,246)            806                 (10,324)            (8,000)            17,500           

Under Estimate

NET BUDGET (2,801)           (3,303)           (8,538)           (2,850)           1,447             26,000          -1012.3% -                      -                      

(502)                  (5,234)               5,688                Over Budget 28,850              
17.93% 158.45% -66.62% -1012.27%

Account 91-21
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

Department 80-01
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Department Outline
Seabright Administration & Operations is managed by the Wastewater Superintendent and his staff.

SUMMARY

 $-

 $5,000

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 FY 17 FY 17

Actual Actual Actual Budget Dept Head
Proposed

Manager's
Proposed

Select Board
Approved

Seabright Administrative & Operations Budget

Appropriations Revenues



Town of Camden, Maine

58 80-01 Admin & Operatiions 58

Fund 9, Department 80-01- Seabright Administration & Operations

06/13/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

01 Personnel Services
02 01 01 Full-time Wages 5,750              5,320              4,300              5,200              5,100              5,200              0.0% 5,200              

5,750             5,320             4,300             5,200             5,100             5,200             0.0% 5,200             0.0% -                      
05 Employees' Benefits

02 01 01 FICA 398                 398                 329                 400                 390                 325                 325                 -18.7%

02 02 Medicare 75                    75                    
05 06 MPERS 470                 470                 

398                398                329                400                390                870                117.5% 870                117.5% -                      
31 Contractual Services

30 64 27 Inspections 11,665           1,695              2,500              2,500              2,156              -                       
30 35 56 Security Monitoring 1,640              847                 358                 750                 336                 -                       
15 02 91 Transformer Rental Fees 1,858              1,641              404                 1,900              1,212              1,900              1,900              0.0%

15,162          4,183             3,262             5,150             3,704             1,900             -63.1% 1,900             -63.1% -                      
32 Other Contractual Services

15 01 70 Electricity 381                 476                 1,027              900                 449                 900                 0.0% 900                 0.0%

20 30 33 Building Repairs & Maintenance 731                 6,760              1,739              2,500              1,481              23,000           820.0% 23,000           820.0%

45 Mowing 550                 550                 
80 11 49 Boiler & Machnery 3,000              

74 Internet Fees 1,580              1,580              
20 76 Telephones, Cell Phones

1,112             7,236             2,766             6,400             1,929             26,030          306.7% 26,030          306.7% -                       
36 Capital Outlay
12 Surveillance Cameras 4,000              3,500              

-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      4,000             3,500             -                      

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 22,422          17,137          10,657          17,150          11,123          38,000          37,500          -                      
(5,285)               (6,480)               6,493                (6,027)               20,850              20,350              
-23.57% -37.81% 60.93% Under Budget 121.57% 118.66%

06/13/16
Actual Actual Actual Budget  YTD

Old 
Line New Line FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

REVENUE

Town GF Support Hydro Reserve 13,000           29,000           
01 01 Energy Credits 12,223           20,440           19,194           20,000           9,676              9,500              6,000              -70.0%

02 Camera Grant 2,500              2,500              

25,223          20,440          19,194          20,000          9,676             12,000          -40.0% 37,500          87.5% -                      

TOTAL REVENUE 25,223          20,440          19,194          20,000          9,676             12,000          -40.0% 37,500          87.5% -                      
(4,783)            (1,246)            806                 (10,324)            (8,000)            17,500           

Under Estimate

NET BUDGET (2,801)           (3,303)           (8,538)           (2,850)           1,447             26,000          -1012.3% -                      -                      

(502)                  (5,234)               5,688                Over Budget 28,850              
17.93% 158.45% -66.62% -1012.27%

Account 98-01
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

REVENUE
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17

David Bolstridge, Superintendent

Department 80-01
Department Head

Town Manager Select Board

APPROPRIATIONS
APPROVED

FY 16 Proposed FY 17 Proposed FY 17 FY 17



Glossary

Town of Camden



blank



Town of Camden, Maine

GLOSSARY

61 Glossary 61

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM:

ACCRUAL BASIS:

ADOPTED BUDGET:

APPROPRIATION:

ASSESSED VALUATION:

BOND:

BUDGET:

CAPITAL BUDGET:

CAPITAL ITEMS:

CARRY-OVER FUNDS:

CASH MANAGEMENT:

The total set of records and procedures that are used to record, classify, and report information on the financial status and operations of  
City government.

The basis of accounting under which transactions are recognized when they occur, regardless of timing of related cash receipts and 
disbursements.

Refers to the budget amounts as originally approved by the City Council applicable to a single fiscal year.

An authorization granted by the City Council that permits officials to incur obligations against and to make expenditures of city's 
resources.  

The total value of all real and personal property in the City that is used as a basis for levying taxes.  Tax exempt property is excluded 
from the assessable base.

A written promise to pay a specified sum of money (called principal or face value) at a specified future date, plus periodic interest paid 
at a specified percentage of the principal (interest rate).  In the budget document these payments are identified as "Long-Term Debt".

The financial plan for the operations of the City for the year.

The capital budget includes projects that exceed $5,000 and may be budgeted, leased, mortgaged, or bonded for a period of three to five 
years or more.  The capital budget is separate from the annual City budget, but may be included in the annual budget for informational 
purposes and as a means of tracking the long term project expenses.

A category of account codes that identify major expenditures of public funds beyond maintenance and operating costs.  Items may 
include vehicles, computer equipment, office furniture, and the acquisition or construction of a needed physical facility or improvements 
to land and/or buildings.  Capital items have a value of $500 or more and have a useful economic lifetime of more than one year.

Carry-over funds are the result of unspent appropriations in the prior year, new growth, the expansion of the tax base beyond what was 
projected, and increased revenues over estimated amounts.  These funds are brought forward from the preceding fiscal year reserves.  
Appropriated carry-over funds are known as unreserved fund balance.

Management of cash flows in such a way that interest and penalties paid are minimized and interest earned is maximized.  Checks 
received are deposited in a timely manner, and bills are paid no later than the due date unless discounts can be obtained by paying early.  
Future cash needs are determined, and cash on hand invested in interest-bearing secure accounts.



Town of Camden, Maine

GLOSSARY

62 Glossary 62

COMPARATIVE DATA:

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:

COST:

COUNTY TAX:

DEBT:

DEBT SERVICE:

DEFICIT:

EFFECTIVENESS:

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

ENCUMBRANCE:

EXPENDITURE:

EXPENSES:

Employee benefit expenditures in the budget are the City's share of employees' fringe benefits, including FICA, health insurance, life 
insurance, retirement, deferred compensation, unemployment, disability insurance, and workers' compensation.

A reservation of funds for an anticipated expenditure prior to actual payment for an item.  Funds usually are reserved or encumbered 
once a contracted obligation has been signed for an item, but prior to the cash payment actually being dispersed.  Funds are often 
encumbered from one year to another, based on an anticipated expense.

Payment in cash for current operating expenses, debt, and capital outlays.

Charges incurred, whether paid or unpaid, for operations, maintenance, interest and other charges which are presumed to benefit the 
current fiscal year.

ENTERPRISE FUND:
Funds that provide for services to the public for a fee that makes the entity mostly or all self-supporting.

Term used in connection with the evaluation of internal controls and performance measurement.  The degree to which an entity, 
program, or procedure is successful at achieving its goals and objectives.

A category of account codes which reflects services provided by contract (either written or verbal); subcontracts, advertising, printing, 
mileage reimbursement, training costs, and other services.

The amount of money or value exchanged for property or services.

The annual county tax assessment levied annually by Knox County.  The State of Maine Revenue Service provides annual municipal 
assessments from which the County calculates its tax rate.  Taxes are payable on September 1 of each year; interest on unpaid taxes 
commences sixty days after the due date at a rate established annually by the state of Maine Revenue Service.

An obligation resulting from the borrowing of money.

The accounting for payments of principal and interest on long-term debt.

(1) The excess of the liabilities of a fund over its assets.  
(2) The excess of expenditures over revenues during an accounting period.

DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET:
The financial plan for the operations of an individual department within the municipal government for the year.

DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE:
Funds approved and set aside for a specific defined purpose by the Select Board, from the City's overall fund balance.

Information from prior fiscal periods provided to enhance the analysis of financial data of the current fiscal period.



Town of Camden, Maine

GLOSSARY

63 Glossary 63

Section 7(k)
FLSA Section 7(k) states that employees engaged in fire protection or law enforcement may be paid overtime on a 
"work period" basis.  The "work period" may be from 7 consecutive days to 28 consecutive days in length.  For work 
periods of at least 7 but less than 28 days, overtime pay is required when the number of hours worked exceeds the 
number of hours that bears the same relationship to 212 (fire) or 171 (police) as the number of days in the work period 
bears to 28.  As an example, fire protection personnel are due overtime under such a plan after 106 hours worked 
during a 14-day work period, while law enforcement personnel must receive overtime after 86 hours worked during a 
14-day work period.  

FEES:

FISCAL POLICY:

FISCAL YEAR:

FUND:

FUND BALANCE:

GENERAL FUND:

GOAL:

Accounts for the general operations of the City.  This fund accounts for all financial transactions and resources not required to be 
accounted for in an enterprise fund.

GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP):
Government accounting and financial reporting is guided by what are referred to as "generally accepted accounting principles" (GAAP) 
applicable to governmental units.  These standards were formulated through the voluntary action of several professional groups and are 
evaluated and updated by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A long-range desirable development attained by time-phased objectives designed to implement a strategy.

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION (GFOA):
An association of public finance professionals founded in 1906 as the Municipal Finance Officers Association.  The GFOA has played a 
major role in the development and promotion of GAAP for state and local government since its inception and has sponsored the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program since 1946.

FUND BALANCE, THE  - See "The New Fund Balance"

FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA):
The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, recordkeeping, and youth employment standards for employment subject to its provisions. 
Non-exempt, covered employees must be paid at least the minimum wage and not less than one and one-half times their regular rates of 
pay for overtime hours worked.

A general term used for any charges levied by the City associated with providing a service permitting an activity, or imposing a fine or 
penalty.  Major types of fees include business and non-business licenses, fines, and user charges.

The City government's policies with respect to taxes, spending and debt management as these relate to government services, programs, 
and capital investment.  Fiscal policy provides an agreed upon set of principles for the planning and programming of government 
budgets and their funding.

In the City of Rockland, the twelve months beginning July 1 and ending the following June 30.

A fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts which is segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities 
or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.

The excess of a fund's assets over its liabilities and reserves.  The excess balance is often referred to as "surplus".  A negative fund 
balance is sometimes called a "deficit".



Town of Camden, Maine

GLOSSARY

64 Glossary 64

GRANT:

INVESTMENT:

LIABILITY:

LINE ITEM:

OTHER 

OVERLAY:

Revenue from other governments primarily Federal and State grants, but also payments from other local governments.

Securities and real estate purchased and held for the production of income in the form of interest, dividends, rentals or base payments.

Debt or other legal obligations arising out of transactions in the past which must be liquidated, renewed or refunded at some future date, 
not including encumbrances.

A specific expenditure category within a departmental budget, i.e. rent, travel, telephone, postage, printing, or office supplies.  Defined 
by an appropriation number.

MPERS: Maine Public Employees Retirement System

A category of account codes which includes items such as alarm/security monitoring, street lights, public agency funding, government 
and school assessments, and miscellaneous grants.

That amount of expenditure budgeted which has the affect of increasing the property tax levy, not to exceed 5% of the actual property 
tax levy, in order to cover potential property valuation adjustments necessary, which would have the affect of reducing property tax 
collections.

PERSONNEL SERVICES:  A category of account codes which identifies various classification of wages, salaries, and overtime 
expenses.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES:

GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB):
The ultimate authoritative accounting and financial reporting standard-setting body for state and local governments.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
Funds generally used to account for tax-supported activities.  There are five types of governmental funds: the general fund, special 
revenue funds, debt service funds, capital project funds, and permanent funds.

A contribution of assets (usually cash) by one governmental unit or other organization to another.  Typically, these contributions are 
made to local governments from the state and federal governments.

Groundwater that enters sewer systems through defective pipes.

INFLOW:
Water entering sewers from inappropriate connections, i.e. roof drains, cellar drains, yard drains and storm water runoff.

INFILTRATION:



Town of Camden, Maine

GLOSSARY

65 Glossary 65

RESERVE:

REVENUE:

     Temporary Employee: Appointment to work a standard work week, or less, on a regular basis but for a definite limited period of 
time, usually not to exceed six (6) months.  Temporary employees are paid for hours worked and overtime is paid where applicable, but 
they receive no other benefits except those mandated by federal and state laws.

     Seasonal Employee:  Appointment to a temporary position on a seasonal basis.  The employee is terminated at the end of the 
applicable season, and such employees are paid only for hours actually worked, and are not eligible for any other benefits except those 
mandated by federal and state laws.

     On-Call Employee: Appointment to work on an intermittent and as-needed basis.  Employees who are on call do not have a regular 
schedule but work as available and as needed.  Such employees are paid only for hours worked or by annual stipend, and are not eligible 
for any other benefits except those mandated by federal and state laws.

     Contracted Individual:  Retained under a contract between the City and the individual.  Such individual receives payments as 
negotiated by contract, and has no claim to benefits, except as specifically negotiated.

     Student Employee:  Appointment of school student during their enrollment in school, including summer employment.  Students will 
be paid as determined by the City Manager.  Student employees are not eligible for benefits other than those mandated by federal and 
state laws.

PROPOSED BUDGET:
The recommended City budget submitted by the City Manager to the City Council.

An account that has been established either through appropriation, donation, excess surplus, or other for a specified purpose.  

Funds which the government receives as income.  It includes such items as fees from specific services, property taxes, grants and interest 
income.

RETAINED EARNINGS:
Profits realized at the end of the year after paying all expenses.  Retained Earnings are either reserved for a specific purpose or retained 
for future use to either offset expenses, purchase equipment, or other reasons for the benefits of the Enterprise Fund.

     Part-time Employee:  Appointment of a budgeted position to work less than a standard work week on a continuing basis.  Part-time 
employees are paid only for hours actually worked, and are not eligible for any other benefits except those mandated by federal and state 
laws.

POSITION:
Placement of position within City government, describing duties and responsibilities to be performed by a person on a full-time, part-
time, seasonal, temporary, or stipend basis.  For the purpose of the City's budget, the following definitions are used solely in describing 
the status and funding of positions:

     Full-time Employee:  Appointment of a budgeted position to work a standard work week of no less than 40 hours on a continuing 
and indefinite basis.  All benefits apply in conformity with the established personnel policy.  (Rockland considers a full-time hourly 
clerical employee to work 37.5 hours per week.)



Town of Camden, Maine

GLOSSARY

66 Glossary 66

SUPPLIES:

Funds not earmarked for any specific purpose and used at the discretion of the City Council, equal to at least 8% (by City policy) of the 
total annual budget comprising the proposed operating budget to be voted on at Public Meeting, the County assessment, the school 
assessment, the annual TIF payment, and the estimated Overlay.

The new standards clarify the definitions of individual governmental fund types.  It interprets certain terms within the definition of 
special revenue fund types, while further clarifying the debt service and capital projects fund type definitions.

UNENCUMBERED BALANCE:
The year-end cash balance of a fund less outstanding encumbrances.  The unencumbered balance at year-end in a fund together with the 
estimated revenues for the upcoming year determine the maximum amount available for appropriation in the next year's budget.

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:
Fund balance at the close of a fiscal year that is not included in the annual budget.

UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE (UFB) formerly Undesignated Fund Balance:

 - Unassigned  - amounts that are not constrained at all will be reported in the general fund.

TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES (TAN):
Notes issued in anticipation of taxes which are retired usually from taxes and other revenues collected.

TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT (TIF):
Financing mechanism used to finance certain public improvements throughout a certain area defined within the City.  Expenditures from 
these projects are recouped in future years via an incremental tax levied upon the districts "captured assessed value" at the inception of 
the TIF agreement.

TAXES:
Levied by the City based on assessed values of real estate and personal property for the purpose of financing public services performed 
for the common benefit of its citizenry.

THE NEW FUND BALANCE:
GASB 54 is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.  Fund accounts will be reported in the following 
classifications:

 - Restricted  - amounts constrained by external parties, constitutional provision, or enabling legislation

 - Committed  - amounts constrained by a government using its highest level of decision-making authority

 - Assigned - amounts a government intends to use for a particular purpose

Supplies includes supplies of all types, which are consumed or deteriorated through use or which lose their identity through fabrication 
or incorporation into different or more complex units or substances.

SALARIES AND WAGES:
FLSA Exempt Employees are paid a salary based on the work week; FLSA Non-Exempt Employees are paid hourly wages, subject to 
wages and overtime provisions of FLSA.



Certificate of Commitment of Sewer User Rates 
 

 
To:  Marlene J. Libby the Treasurer of the municipality of Camden, Maine. 
 
We, the undersigned municipal officers of the municipality of Camden, Maine 
 
Hereby certify and commit to you a true list of the sewer rates established by us pursuant 
 
To 30-A   M.R.S.A. & 3406 for those properties, units, and structures required by local 
 
And State law to pay a sewer rate to the municipality, for the period of:  
 
  4/13/16 – 7/12/16 (Quarterly, Seasonal & Final Bills) 
    
 
You are hereby required to collect from each 
 
Person named in the list his or her respective amount as indicated in the list, the 
 
Sum total of those lists being $321,333.42.                               . 
 
You are hereby authorized to collect these rates, and accrued interest, and all costs of 
 
Collections by any means legally available to you under State law.   
 
You shall complete and make an account of your collections of the whole sum herein 
 
Committed to you on October 4, 2016. 
 
Given under our hands this 4th day of October 2016. 
 

______________________________ 
 

______________________________ 
 

______________________________ 
 

______________________________ 
 

______________________________ 
 

            Wastewater Commissioners, Town of Camden 
        Board of Select Persons 


	Select Board Agenda 10.4.16
	B. COMMUNICATIONS
	1.  River Level:  Mark Wallack
	2.  Proposed Change to Daysailer License Agreements
	3.  Middle School Building Committee Presentation
	4. Downtown Streetlight Proposal
	Untitled
	Untitled
	D.  Approval of Select Board Minutes 09.20.16
	E. Public Hearings
	1.  Amendment tp Camden Police Ordinance, Public Noise and Conduct Ordinance
	2.  Adoption of 2016-17 GA Ordinance Maximums
	LIQUOR LICENSES AND SPECIAL AMUSEMENT PERMITS
	3A. Renewal Liquor License Peter Ott's
	3B.  Renewal Special Amusement Peter Otts
	3C.  Renewal Liquor License Bay View Street Inn
	G.  NEW BUSINESS
	1.  Approval of Town Meting Warrant 
	2.  Order for own Meeting 
	3.  Appointment of Opera House Committee Member
	4.  Renewal Lodging for Camden Windward House
	5.  Renewal Victualer for Camden Windward House
	6. Renewal Victualer for Peter Otts
	WASTEWATER COMMISSIONERS
	1.  Bid Award:  East and West Dam Access Platforms
	2. Bid Award:  Sewer Collection System Repairs
	3.  2017 Wastewater & Seabright Hydro Budget
	4.  WW Committment for Quarterly Sewer Charges

